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Notes

Notice is hereby given that the 21st Annual General Meeting of ACI Formulations Limited will be held on 

Monday, 18 December 2017 at 9:00 am at Officers Club, 26 Baily Road, Dhaka to transact the following 

business:

AGENDA

1)  To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2017 

together with Reports of the Auditors and the Directors thereon.

2)  To declare dividend for the year ended 30 June 2017.

3)  To elect/re-elect Directors as per terms of the Articles of Association of the Company.

4)  To approve the re-appointment of Independent Director, Mr. Kamran T. Rahman.

5)  To re-appoint the Managing Director, Ms. Shusmita Anis for a term of 5 years from 30/12/2017 to 

29/12/2022.

6)  To appoint Auditors for the year 2017-2018 and fix their remuneration.

By Order of the Board

Sheema Abed Rahman

Company Secretary

Dhaka

27 November 2017

Notice of the 21st Annual General Meeting

evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgk‡bi wb‡`©kbv Abyhvqx Avmbœ evwl©K mvaviY mfvq †Kvb cÖKvi 
Dcnvi/Lvevi/‡Kvb ai‡bi Kzcb cÖ`v‡bi e¨e¯’v _vK‡e bv|

a.  The Shareholders, whose names appeared in the Members/Depository Register as on the Record Date, 

i.e. 13 November 2017 will be eligible to attend the AGM and receive the dividend.

b.  The Shareholders are requested to submit their written option to receive dividend to the Company's 

Share Office on or before 14 December 2017. In case of non-receipt of such option within the stipulated 

time, the dividend will be paid off as deemed appropriate by the Company. The Shareholders are also 

requested to update their mailing address before the Record Date to get the Annual Report in time. 

c.  The Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited at the Share Office of the Company at 9 Motijheel 

Commercial Area, Dhaka-1000 not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

d.  Admittance to the Meeting venue will be on production of the Attendance Slip and verification of 

signature of Member (s) and/or Proxy-holder (s). 

e.  The Annual Report 2016-2017 is available in Company's website, www.aci-bd.com.
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Financial Highlights and Analysis

Shareowners' Equity
(Taka in Million)

Earnings Per Share
(Taka)

Net Sales Income & Profit Before Tax
(Taka in Million)
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1,639 1,714 1,730 1,806

2,350 2,283
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Turnover Contribution by Business Unit

2016-2017
Jan- Jun

2016

Jan- Dec

2015

      Business Unit 2016-2017 Jan - Jun 2016 Jan - Dec 2015

A Corp Care & Public Health 61.91% 63.24% 64.30%

B Mosquito Coil 14.44% 14.76% 17.76%

C Aerosol 16.80% 19.04% 15.97%

D Others 6.85% 2.96% 1.97%
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Comparative Statistics

Comparison of Turnover & Costs

 2016-17 % Jan-June 2016 % Jan-Dec %

   (six month)  2015

Turnover (Gross) 3,969.62 100  1,767.32  100  3,172.55 100 

Cost of Materials 2,128.79 53.63 965.94 54.65 1,877.10 59.17 

Salaries, Wages & Benefits paid to employees 487.26 12.27 216.79 12.27 312.04 9.83 

Expenses 527.79 13.30 238.37 13.49 361.61 11.40 

Duties & Taxes paid to Government Exchequer 564.34 14.22 255.82 14.48 386.64 12.19 

Profit 261.44 6.58 90.40 5.11 235.16 7.41 

Total 3,969.62 100.00 1,767.32 100.00 3,172.55 100.00 

 Particulars 2011  2012  2013  2014  2015  June 2016  July 16- 
      (Six Month) June 17 

 Taka in million

 Authorized capital 500.00  500.00  500.00  500.00  500.00  500.00  500.00 

 Issued & paid-up capital 300.00  450.00  450.00  450.00  450.00  450.00  450.00 

 Current assets 1,646.05  1,590.00  1,652.00  1,811.60  2,594.40  2,719.34  3,296.51 

 Tangible fixed assets (gross) 1,262.89  1,353.97  1,389.43  1,435.68  1,717.06  1,761.33  1,857.65 

 Shareowners' equity 1,638.78  1,713.74  1,730.47  1,805.59  2,350.46  2,283.36  2,454.80 

 Turnover (net) 2,443.66  2,581.04  2,340.43  2,908.11  3,006.49  1,625.48  3,629.43 

 Gross profit 571.86  609.86  584.56  738.58  800.14  476.94  1,107.81 

 Profit before tax 197.49  200.21  172.29  259.65  313.11  126.64  356.73 

 Profit after tax 146.85  149.96  129.23  187.62  235.14  90.40  261.44 

 Dividend 225.00  112.50  112.50  135.00  157.50  -  157.50 

 Current ratio (times) 1.46  1.50  1.49  1.50  1.35  1.29  1.29 

 Quick ratio (times)  0.84  0.87  0.98  0.94  0.88  0.82  0.75 

 Return on equity (%) 9.00  9.00  7.00  10.00  10.00  *7.92  10.65 

 Inventory turnover (times) 2.67  2.95  3.06  3.21  2.46  *2.31  1.82 

 Debtors turnover (times) 4.23  4.26  4.93  3.48  2.19  *2.56  2.51 

 Fixed assets turnover (times) 2.02  2.05  1.88  2.34  1.72  *1.87  2.02 

 Net asset per share (Taka) 36.42  38.08  38.45  40.12  52.23  50.74  54.55 

 Market price per share (Taka) 89.00  73.90  78.90  126.70  189.70  155.00  200.10 

 Earnings per share (Taka) 3.26  3.33  2.87  4.17  5.23  2.01  5.81 

 Dividend per share (Taka) 7.50  2.50  2.50  3.00  3.50  -  3.50 

 Dividend rate (%) 75.00  25.00  25.00  30.00  35.00  -  35.00 

 Dividend payout ratio (%) 230.06  75.08  87.11  71.94  66.92  -  60.24 

 Price earnings ratio (times) 27.30  22.19  27.49  30.38  36.27  *38.56  34.44 

 Dividend yield (%) 8.43  3.38  3.17  2.37  1.85  -  1.75 

 Number of employees 798  921  922  1,149  1,459  1,489  1,679 

* Ratios are annualised. 

Taka in Million

Cost of Materials

Salaries, Wages &

Benefits Paid to Employees

Expenses

Duties & Taxes Paid

to Government Exchequer

Profit

Analysis of Turnover (%)

Jan - Dec

2015
Jan - Jun

2016
2016-

2017
59.17%

9.83%

11.40%

12.19%

7.41%

54.65%

12.27%

13.49%

14.48%

5.11%

53.63%

12.27%

13.30%

14.22%

6.58%
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M. Anis Ud Dowla

Chairman

Assalamu Alaikum,

After a few years of merciful climate, nature last 

year was unkind. Excessive rainfall in the whole 

region caused flood on a large scale. For two 

successive seasons crops were affected due to 

floods. Our Crop Care business suffered as a result. 

Particularly affected was our Flora business, which, 

inspite of excellent branding, fell short of the 

projected level of sales. However, the Crop Care 

business tried hard to recover and did better than 

most of the competition.

We have renovated and overhauled our Gazipur 

factory operations with focus on saving cost, 

conserve energy and streamline systems and 

processes. Contract manufacturing of S.C. Johnson 

& Son products has also gone through their review 

satisfactorily. 

The factory is fully green in terms of effluents    

and waste. Our incinerator completely decomposes 

solid waste and our Effluent Treatment Plant fully 

neutralizes the effluent and recycles the fluid for 

irrigation purposes. 

Our employees are hard working and productive. 

The Crop Care field force and marketing people 

deserve special appreciation for doing a good job, 

helping the farmers cope with the floods. On your 

behalf I wish to thank all the employees for their 

performance and dedication.

We are seeking new areas of opportunity for 

expansion. Several factors including uncertainty of 

cost and availability of gas and electricity are 

hindering progress of project evaluation.

Allah Hafez.

M. Anis Ud Dowla
Chairman

Message from the Chairman
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" The factory is fully green in terms
  of effluents and waste."  
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Statement of Corporate Governance (CG)

In ACI Formulations Limited (ACI FL) corporate governance is a maxim that is intertwined in responsibility, 

compliance, transparency and finally accountability. As a part of it, ACI FL acknowledges good corporate 

governance as the essential element for success in business and recognizes that it is to be established by 

means of an effective CG Regime. Accordingly, ACI FL emphasizes on stronger diligence to business, all 

operations being transparent and invites larger involvement of the stakeholders. Aspiring on that, the 

Company has always strived to remain vigilant on good governance and good business conduct so as to 

create and maintain value for shareowners, safeguard stakeholders' interest and justify investor confidence. 

In this respect the Directors of ACI FL are also committed to meeting the highest standards of governance 

and disclosure. And with that aim, the Board ensures the integrity and firm attention of its employees, 

supported by a comprehensive framework of policies, guidelines and internal control. The Directors are 

conscious of their own responsibilities in supervision and direction of affairs of the Company in conformity 

with the practices of sound corporate governance. In fulfillment of those responsibilities, the Directors have 

set for themselves the principles that will be followed in their own involvement in the oversight functions 

and in setting up clear guidelines for the executive management.

The Governing Board

The Board of Directors of ACI FL, being the highest authority in the Company, is constituted by a body of 

very knowledgeable persons and includes core competencies considered relevant in the context of the 

Company. To further ensure a balanced representation, the Board also includes Independent Directors, who 

are very resourceful and dignified members of the society. Thus, the Board of ACI FL is a compact body and 

meets all the criteria required under the BSEC governing guidelines. Further details about members of the 

Board are appended at the appropriate parts in this report.

Composition of the Board

The Board consists of 7 (seven) members drawn from amongst the major shareowners and business 

professionals. Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla is the Chairman of the Board and Ms. Shusmita Anis is the Managing 

Director. Of the seven Directors, five are non-executive Directors including two Independent Directors. The 

non-executive Directors are, however, available whenever business operations call for their attention and 

involvement.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is the supreme authority of the Company to oversee its operations through appropriate 

delegation, monitoring, control and reporting. The Directors hold the ultimate responsibility of conducting 

the activities of the Company in accordance with law and in the interest of its shareowners and other 

stakeholders, keeping in view the long-term interest and aspirations of the Company, while also discharging 

company's legal obligations to its shareowners.

Functioning of the Board

The Directors meet together for the dispatch of the business and regulate the meetings and proceedings 

according to the needs of the Company. Every Board meeting is preceded by service of Notice well ahead of 

scheduled time. Notice with agenda supported by working papers for every meeting of the Board are sent to 

all Directors well in advance so that they can come up with their considered views and can actively 

participate at the deliberations. During the meeting, the Board gets a thorough review of the performance of 

the Company through a PowerPoint presentation by the Managing Director. All pertinent matters are 

discussed in details and decisions are taken based on thorough considerations. Questions arising at any 

meeting are decided by a majority of votes. However, there is a procedure supported by the Articles of 

Associations of the Company which allows taking care of any urgent matter through Resolution by 

Circulation. Such circular resolution is adopted by the Directors present in Bangladesh, without having to call 

a formal Board Meeting. To make it transparent, such resolutions passed by circulation are subsequently 

tabled at the immediate following Board meeting and included in the minutes accordingly.



Management through People

The directors believe that a successful Board directs and not manage. Rather they manage the 

management. And with that spirit, the Board has delegated adequate operational and financial authorities to 

the Managing Director which empowers her to set up the organizational structure, recruit appropriate 

people, empower them to manage the Strategic Business Units and functional areas and provide them 

guidance for achievement of the desired results. 

As the apex corporate authority, the Board is kept informed of the goals, targets and initiatives of the 

Business Units and apprised of the financial performance on a regular quarterly basis. 

The Managing Director is in charge of operations of the Company and manages the affairs of the Company 

through close consultation with relevant people from within the Company and outside experts. 

Empowerment of People

The Board has given clear guidelines to the Managing Director to ensure that there is appropriate delegation 

of authority and clear statement of accountability of the management staff all the way down to the 

supervisory level and that performance of the individual is judged on the basis of clearly set measurable 

goals and through objective assessment of their achievements.

Reporting and Communication

The Managing Director reviews and approves the strategic plans of each Business Unit every quarter. She also 

reviews monthly report and commentary on the sales and financial performance of business from the heads of 

businesses and the activities of the functional and service heads. An elaborate MIS system is in place.

Communication with Shareowners

The Board considers that good governance involves openness and trustful cooperation among all 

stakeholders concerned, including the shareowners of the Company. Shareowners, being the ultimate 

controllers of the Company, deserve to be informed in all corporate respects required under the law. Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) is the highest forum for interaction between shareowners and management of the 

Company. Accordingly, the Company holds the AGM regularly and in time. The shareowners are informed 

about the AGM well in advance and meeting materials are dispatched to them with priority abiding by laws 

and guidelines. The Directors attending the Annual General Meeting note the views, aspirations and 

suggestions of the shareowners and institutional stakeholders offered at the AGM and consider them with 

utmost attention. The Managing Director also brings to the notice of the Board any written communication 

received by her from the shareowners.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Managing Director has to satisfy the Board that adequate internal check and controls are in place 

through appropriate MIS and employment of Internal Audit team to check and validate the expenses and the 

systems in operation. To further strengthen the controls, the Company has introduced ISO 9001:2008 

Quality Management System, under which all activities are carried out on the basis of Standard Operating 

Procedures. These standard procedures are updated on a regular basis in line with ISO requirements. The 

Company has also introduced ISO 14001:2004 Environmental Management System, and as a result has 

undertaken a task of continuing improvement through annual goals. Internal Audit department has been 

strengthened with induction of qualified and experienced personnel, demonstrating the Board's commitment 

to ensure that adequate risk management and internal control systems are in place across the Company. 

Independent Director

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Guidelines of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 

Commission (BSEC), the existing Board of Directors of the Company includes two Independent Directors, Mr. 

Juned Ahmed Choudhury and Mr. Kamran T. Rahman. Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury also acts as the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Independent Directors of the Company have been elected amongst 

the senior corporate leaders and bureaucrats of the country who are elite members of the society having 

requisite qualifications as prescribed by BSEC. 

Distinctive Role of Chairman and Managing Director

According to the Governance Guidelines, the positions of Chairman and Managing Director are being held by 

separate individuals and their roles and responsibilities are clearly established, set out in writing and which 

are distinct from each other to ensure transparency and better governance. The Chairman is a non-

executive director and responsible for smooth functioning of the Board, while the Managing Director acts as 

the Chief Executive Officer and in charge of the day-to-day operations of the Company.

Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Company Secretary

Under requirements of the BSEC Governance Guidelines, the Company has in place the above three key 

positions held by three qualified professionals. Mr. Pradip Kar Chowdhury, a Fellow Chartered Accountant, 

acts as the Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Amitava Saha, acts as the Head of Risk Management & Internal 

Audit. While Ms. Sheema Abed Rahman, a fellow Chartered Secretary, is appointed as the Company 

Secretary of the Company who is responsible for overall governing compliance of the Company and performs 

as the bridge between the Board, Management and Shareowners. The roles, responsibilities and duties of 

these three key positions have clearly set forth in writing by the Board.

The Board Audit Committee

Following the Guidelines of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, the Board has constituted an 

Audit Committee for the Company the details of which are stated in the Audit Committee Report forming 
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part of this Annual Report. The Committee comprises of 3 (three) Members from the Board of Directors, 

who are Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury, Mrs. Najma Dowla and Dr. F H Ansarey. All members of the Audit 

Committee are financially literate and are able to scrutinize and interpret financial statements while 

discharging their duties and responsibilities as a member of the Committee. Being the Independent Director 

and having the requisite qualification in line with the BSEC guidelines, Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury has 

been appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of 

the Committee, as required by the BSEC guidelines. The Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit 

attend all meetings of the Audit Committee regularly as special invitees.

The Audit Committee met five times during FY 2016-2017. The key responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

1.  Review and monitor the integrity of the financial reporting system and ensure that Company 

complies with the accounting policies, principles and applicable standards.

2.  Review and appraisal of the performance of the internal audit and internal control system.

3.  Review of the risks associated with the Company's business operation including mitigation and 

awareness plan.

4.  Overseeing hiring and performance of external auditors.

5.  Other matters as per terms of reference as well as time to time requirements of the Regulators.

Reviewing of Business and Financial operations

The operations of the Company are regularly supervised, monitored and guided by the Board. The purpose of 

business review is to ensure strategic control and follow-up of results based on the prevailing strategic 

objectives and value considerations. Financial reviews provide the internal quarterly results follow-up for the 

Company. The purpose is to provide an analysis of the economic and financial situations, which will then form 

the basis for external reporting and presentations and to provide quality assurance for the financial reporting.
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We are pleased to present herewith the Report of the Audit Committee of ACI Formulations Limited (ACI FL) 

pursuant to the Corporate Governance Guidelines of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission 

(BSEC). The report includes an abstract of activities performed by the Audit Committee during FY 2016-2017.

Composition of the Board’s Audit Committee:

 Name Board Committee

 Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury Independent Director Chairman

 Dr. F H Ansarey Director Member

 Mrs. Najma Dowla Director Member

 Ms. Sheema Abed Rahman Company Secretary Secretary

All members of the Committee are appointed by the Board.

In ACI FL, assessment and evaluation of the Internal Control Policy are made to ensure that the Company 

employs a sound system of internal control including financial control. The Committee in its meetings 

reviewed among others, the accounting and financial reporting process of the Company and assisted the 

Board of Directors in ensuring that the financial statements reflected true and fair view of the state of affairs 

of the Company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the business.

The Audit Committee is authorized by the Board of Directors to review any activity within the business as 

per its Terms of Reference and Corporate Governance Guidelines of BSEC. It is authorized to seek any 

information from, and attendance of any Director or member of management at any meetings. All 

employees are expected to co-operate with any initiative made by the Committee.

The key responsibilities of the Audit Committee includes:

Review

Along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval.

The adequacy of internal audit function.

Statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the management.

Management Letters/Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory auditors.

Initial Public Offering (IPO)/Repeat Public Offering (RPO)/Rights Issue.

Monitor

Choice of accounting policies and principles.

Internal Control Risk management process.

Funds utilized for the purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus.

Oversee

The financial reporting process.

Appointment of statutory auditors and their performance.



Meeting 

Attended

5

4

1

4

Meeting Held 

5

5

5

5

Position 

Chairman 

Member 

Member 

Secretary

Members Name

Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury 

Dr. F H Ansarey

Mrs. Najma Dowla 

Ms. Sheema Abed Rahman

Meetings and attendance

The Audit Committee met five times during FY 2016-2017. The details of attendance of each member at 

the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

In addition to the members of Committee, the Chief Financial Officer and Head of Risk Management & 

Internal Audit are permanent invitees to the meetings of the Audit Committee. 

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee explicitly defines its purpose, authority, responsibilities 

and objectives. Role and functions of the Committee are further regulated by the rules governing the 

Audit Committee as specified by the 'Conditions on Corporate Governance' issued by the Bangladesh 

Securities and Exchange Commission. The Audit Committee is responsible to and reports to the Board of 

Directors.

The principal activities of the Audit Committee during the year were as follows:

1. Internal Control and Business Risk management

The Board has established a process designed to provide reasonable assurance by the Management 

regarding the achievement of objectives relating to effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability 

of the information and reporting, compliance with applicable laws, regulation and policy, procedures and 

safeguarding company assets. 

To further strengthen the controls, the company has adopted and been consistently complying with the 

following international standards and guidelines:

ISO 9001: 2008 Quality Management System

ISO 14001: 2004 Environmental Management System

Business Risk Management is an ongoing process in ACI 

FL where risks are identified along with recognition of risk 

factors, review and evaluation of risks to the achievement 

of business objectives. The Managing Director has to 

assure the Board on the adequacy of assigned Business 

Risk Management and Internal Control Process. Internal 

Audit is dedicated in a pivotal role into Risk Management 

Process. As such, Risk Management and Internal Audit 

department conducts yearly review focusing on to the 

risk indicators, where a detailed risk map is prepared.

The Audit Committee and the Managing Director review this risk map periodically.
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2. Internal Audit

The Internal Audit activity is established to provide independent, objective assurance and consulting 

services designed to add value and improve the Company's operation. It helps the Business units achieving 

its objective by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate risk management, control and 

governance processes.

Audit activities play an essential and useful role in conducting successful operations. These activities serve 

to examine and evaluate financial, administrative and operational activities of the Company. Management is 

provided with information to assist in their control of the assets and operations for attainment of objectives 

for which they are responsible. Internal Audit mainly concentrates on risk-based audit approach, and that 

allows Internal Audit to provide assurance to the Board that risks are managed effectively and timely.

The Audit Committee reviews the internal audit plans to assure the consistency and coverage of the risk 

management framework of the Company. The Committee reviews the following activities:

To assure, Internal Audit department has the competency and qualifications to maintain its mandates.

Status report from the Internal Audit department and ensure that appropriate actions have been taken 

to implement its recommendations.

Recommend any broader review deemed necessary as a consequence of any issues that may have been 

identified.

Request and review any special audit when deemed necessary.

3. External Auditor 

Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered Accountants (KPMG in Bangladesh), a Member Firm of KPMG International, 

was appointed as statutory external auditors of the Company for the FY 2016-2017 at the 20th Annual 

General Meeting held on 7 December 2016. In this respect the Audit Committee has ensured that the 

statutory auditors are not engaged in any activity restricted in the BSEC Guidelines and that none of the 

Partners or employees of the Firm or members of the audit team are holders of any share in the Company. 

This is demonstrated in a declaration from the statutory auditors during the year.

After audit, the Committee reviewed the findings and recommendations made by the external auditor and 

advised the Board and management to take necessary actions. 

General Summary of activities of the Audit Committee

The Committee met five times during the year under review to carry out the following major activities:

Reviewed and recommended to the Board on approval of the Annual Financial Statements for the year 

ended on 30 June 2017. 

Reviewed the Management Letter from external auditors for the year under review along with 

management's responses on the findings. 

Reviewed the Auditors' Certificate on Corporate Governance compliance for the year ended 30 June 

2017. 
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Reviewed and ascertained that the internal control system including financial and operational controls, 

accounting system, and reporting structure are adequate and effective.

Reviewed the periodical reports submitted by the Internal Auditors and recommended to the 

management regarding proper and prompt resolution of the irregularities/issues stated therein. 

Reviewed the actions taken by the management for implementation of Audit Committee observations on 

issues deliberated in Audit Committee reports. 

The Committee placed its reports regularly to the Board for reviewing and monitoring the activities 

recommended on internal control system, compliance with rules and regulation of the regulatory bodies. 

The Committee reviewed relevant quarterly Financial Statements during the year under review and 

recommended to the Board for their approval.

Based on the above review and discussions, the Audit Committee is of the view that the internal control 

and compliance procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view of the activities and financial 

status of the Company.
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Sheema Abed Rahman
Secretary, Audit Committee

Juned Ahmed Choudhury
Chairman of the Committee



Directors' Report to the Shareowners
For the Financial Year 2016-2017
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Despite all the challenges of excessive rainfall and 

flooding in large part of the country in two 

consecutive seasons, our business of Crop Care 

and Public Health (CC & PH) recorded a growth of 

16% over the year 2015. This was possible 

because of the strategic leadership and untiring 

efforts of our sales and marketing team. They 

deserve to be acknowledged and appreciated for an 

excellent job done.

In the Crop Care business we have modernized our 

product range further with the addition of six more 

molecules, which are cost-effective and more 

environmentally friendly. The new molecules are 

being branded and will become winners in their 

respective categories. We continue to be the market 

leader in Herbicide category. We have retained a 

strong position in Fungicide range and overall 

gained market share. 

We have introduced a Spraying Service called "Flow 

Master" which provides a spraying machine to a 

sprayer trained by us, who can be hired by farmers 

to spray their crop. This service is expected to take 

care of proper application and safety. This is an 

initiative under our Corporate Social Responsibility.

Flora is a bio-friendly plant energizer and yield 

booster. As we found good response from users we 

felt encouraged to setup a Strategic Business Unit to 

handle Flora and funded for vigorous branding 

campaign. We also created a separate field force for 

Flora in 2015. In the first two years, we got a robust 

growth in sales of Flora and therefore, planned the 

logistics in expectation for similar results. 

Unfortunately, the floods in successive seasons 

severely curtailed the demand for Flora. We are now 

taking several initiatives to address the situation 

and take corrective measures. The potential of Flora 

It is a pleasure and privilege on the part of the Board of Directors to present herewith the 

Directors' Report and Auditors' Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of 

ACI Formulations Limited (ACI FL) for the first fiscal year (1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017) as 

the financial year of the Company ended on 30 June 2017 prepared based on the 

provisions of the Companies Act 1994, Finance Act 2015 and the Notifications issued from 

time to time by Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC).
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is tremendous and our branding of the product has 

been very successful. We will put the required 

resources to harness full potential of this product in 

the coming seasons and reap the benefit of branding. 

Both Crop Care and Flora team of Crop Care business 

are present in the field, educating the farmers to 

adopt modern agronomic practices for increased yield 

of their crop. We are also working with several NGOs 

& donor agencies to access the farmers in remote 

areas, teaching them modern cultivation technique. 

We are also working on A2i project with the 

Government at Upazilla level.

The factory of ACI Formulations Limited located in 

Gazipur is a fully compliant establishment and is 

certified under the ISO 14001 Environmental 

Management System. ACI FL is committed to 

maintain sustainable environment. 

Our Quality Control labs have all the modern 

analytical equipments and our Standard Operating 

Procedures ensure that the products comply with the 

set Standards without exception. We have Health 

Safety and Environment policies and we ensure 

factory is fully compliant of the highest standards. 

We ensure that our employees always wear personal 

protective gears while at work.

We toll-manufacture products for SC Johnson of the 

USA and AkzoNobel of the Netherlands. We are 

meeting their quality and volume of products to their 

satisfaction. They conduct technical audit from time 

to time and our operations score high in the audit 

rating. 

During the year we have taken many production- 

related improvement measures like automation and 

process improvement. These initiatives have reduced 

cost and improved productivity.

Our Effluent Treatment Plant meets all the 

environment regulations and standards. We process 

all waste materials, both solid and liquid, to remove 

or breakdown the toxic chemicals. Our residue 

disposal protocol meets world-class standards. 
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Appropriation of Profit

(Taka in Million)

Key Operating & Financial Information at a Glance

The key operating and financial information for the year 2016-17 along with the preceding five 

years are presented below:

Figures are in million (BDT) 

  July 2016- January 2016 December December December December December

 Particulars June 2017 -June 2016 2015 2014 2013  2012 2011 

   (six month)  

 Net Turnover 3,629.43 1,625.48 3,006.49 2,908.11 2,340.43 2,581.04 2,443.66

 Gross profit 1,107.81 476.94 800.14 738.58 584.56 609.86 571.86

 Profit before tax 356.73 126.64 313.11 259.65 172.29 200.21 197.49

 Profit after tax 261.44 90.40 235.14 187.62 129.23 149.96 146.85

 Earnings per share (Taka) 5.81 2.01 5.23 4.17 2.87 3.33 3.26

 Issued & paid capital 450.00 450.00 450.00 450.00 450.00 450.00 300.00

 Shareowners' equity 2,454.80 2,283.36 2,350.46 1,805.59 1,730.47 1,713.74 1,638.78

 Net asset per share (Taka) 54.55 50.74 52.23 40.12 38.45 38.08 36.42

 Number of employees 1,679 1,489 1,459 1,149 922 921 798

 Total contribution to 
 National Exchequer 

564.34 255.82 386.64 246.47 165.58 170.00 172.47

Financial Results
For the year ended 30 June 2017, total revenue of ACI Formulations Limited was Taka 3,629.43 

million which was Taka 4,631.97 million for 18 month comparative period. The gross profit 

margin has increased to 30.52% in the current year from 27.57% of last 18 month comparative 

period due to favorable material price variance and higher proportionate sale of high margin 

products. In the current year, operating profit was Taka 493.65 million and profit after tax (PAT) 

was Taka 261.44 million resulting into Earnings per Share Taka 5.81.

Appropriation of Profit
Considering the financial results of the Company during the year and free reserve carried over 

and in line with following a consistent dividend policy, the Directors recommended appropriation 

of net profit as follows:
 For the year For the eighteen- For the six-month  For the year
 ended month period ended  period ended  ended
 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Taka Taka Taka Taka

Un-appropriated profit 696,967,963 527,627,496 606,569,899 527,627,496

Add: Net profit after tax for the period / year 261,436,927 325,540,469 90,398,064 235,142,405

Add: Realization of revaluation reserve - 1,299,998 - 1,299,998

Total available for appropriation 958,404,890 854,467,963 696,967,963 764,069,899

Appropriation of profit:

    Interim dividend

 Cash dividend 90,000,000 - - -

    Final dividend proposed:

 Cash dividend 67,500,000 157,500,000 - 157,500,000

Total dividend  157,500,000 157,500,000 - 157,500,000

Balance carried forward 800,904,890 696,967,963 696,967,963 606,569,899

With the balance carried forward and with future ploughing back of the profit, Directors are 

confident that company will be able to maintain prudent dividend policy in coming years.

Dividend
The Board of Directors has already distributed interim cash dividend @ 20% i.e. Taka 2 per share.

In addition to the above interim dividend, the Board of Directors is pleased to recommend cash 

dividend @15 percent on face value of Tk. 10 per share (i.e. Taka 1.5 per share) for the year  

ended 30 June 2017 to those shareowners whose names were appeared in the Share Register of 

Members of the Company or in the Depository list of CDBL on the Record Date which is Monday, 

13th November 2017.

Contribution to the National Exchequer
For the year ended 30 June 2017, the company contributed Taka 564.34 million to the National 

Exchequer in the form of corporate tax, custom duty and Value Added Tax (VAT). This is equivalent to 

15.55 percent of the Company's net sales revenue for the year 2016-17.

Appropriation of Profit

(Taka in Million)

23.40%
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24.98%
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5.56%
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Cost of Goods Sold and Profit Margins

For the year ended 30 June 2017, cost of goods sold was Taka 2,521.62 million (69.48% of net revenue) which was Taka 3,354.89 million 

(72.43% of net revenue) for 18 month comparative period. This has been achieved due to comparative lower material cost and high 

yielding product mixes. We have been able to generate gross profit margin of 30.52% (Taka 1,107.81 million) during the year ended 30 

June 2017 as against 27.57% (Taka 1,277 million) during 18 month comparative period. Despite a large growth in gross profit margin, the 

PAT percentage was 7.2% due to increased administrative, selling and distribution expenses and higher financing costs.

Directors' Declaration as to Statutory Information

In connection with preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 

2017, the Directors also report that:

Segment-wise performance has been shown in note - 7 (ii) of the Financial Statements.

The Company is aware of the different risks associated with doing business and is prepared to counter those 
risks through systematic approach. Financial risks management has been disclosed in the Note - 32 of the 
Financial Statements.

No extra-ordinary gain or loss exists during the year as prescribed by the Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards (BFRSs).

All transactions with related parties are made on a commercial basis and the basis was the principle of "Arms 
Length Transaction". Details of related party transaction are disclosed in the Note - 36 of the Financial Statements.

No IPO or Right issue was made during the year.

No significant variance occurs between Quarterly Financial Performance and Annual Financial Statements.

During Financial Year 2016-2017, the Company has paid a total of Taka 9,000.00 as Board meeting attendance 
fees. The remuneration of Directors has been mentioned in Note- 28 & Note- 36(b) of the Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements prepared by the management of the Company presents a true and fair view of 
Company's state of affairs, result of its operation and changes in equity and cash flows.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently followed in formulating the Financial Statements and 
Accounting estimates are reasonable and accurate.

Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) and Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) have been 
followed in preparation of the Financial Statements.

The System of Internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

There is no doubt, whatsoever, upon the company's ability to continue as going concern.

All significant variations in operating results from the previous year have been highlighted and reasons 
thereof have been explained.

The key financial and operating data for preceding five years is disclosed in the Directors' Report.

The Company has recommended dividend for the Financial Year 2016-2017. 

During Financial Year 2016-2017, 5 (five) Board meetings were held, which conform the regulatory 
requirements which are shown in Annexure - I.

Shareholding pattern of the Company as on 30 June 2017 are shown in Annexure - II.

The profiles of Directors who have sought for appointment/re-appointment are shown in Annexure - III.

The CEO and CFO has certified to the Board that they have reviewed the Financial Statements and believe 
that these statements do not contain any material untrue statements or omit any material fact or certain 
statements that might be misleading.

The CEO and CFO further confirm that Financial Statements together present a true and fair view of the 
Company's affairs and are in compliance with applicable laws.

The CEO and CFO have further certified to the Board that there are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
no transactions entered into by the Company during the period under review, which are fraudulent, illegal or 
violation of the Company's code of conduct.
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Going Concern

The Board is of the opinion that the Company is 

indeed a going concern. This is recognized through 

appropriate enquiries and analyses, which establishes 

that the resources are adequate to support the 

operations and that sufficient business opportunities 

exist to justify the organisation as a going concern 

and the Directors analyse the financial statements 

accordingly to ensure that. Hence, the Financial 

Statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

CSR is a central function of ACI FL and the projects 

and programs under CSR are selected on basis of their 

relevance to the business objectives of the Company. 

We are conscious of our responsibility to manage a 

sustainable business organization which requires a 

strong team to manage CSR and at the same time 

respect the social aspirations concerning us.  

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 

the following 7 (seven) members having a majority of 

non-executive Directors including two Independent 

Directors:

Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla
Chairman, Board of Directors

Ms. Shusmita Anis
Managing Director

Dr. F H Ansarey
Director

Dr. Arif Dowla
Director

Mrs. Najma Dowla
Director

Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury
Independent Director

Mr. Kamran T. Rahman
Independent Director

Election of Director

By operation of Article 47 of the Company's Articles 

of Association Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla and Dr. F H 

Ansarey retire by rotation and being eligible, offer 

themselves for re-election. Their brief resume and 

other information are appended in the Annexure-III 

of this report as per BSEC notification.

Re-appointment of Independent 
Director

The first three-year tenure of the Independent 

Director, Mr. Kamran T. Rahman expires on 27 April 

2017. Accordingly, the Board in its meeting held on 27 

April 2017 has extended his tenure for another term 

of three-year with effect from 28 April 2017 as the 

Independent Director of the Company as per BSEC 

regulations and recommended to the shareholders for 

approval in the 21st Annual General Meeting.

Brief resume and other information of Mr. Kamran  

T. Rahman is appended in the Annexure-III of this 

report as per BSEC notification. 

Re-appointment of Managing Director

The tenure of Ms. Shusmita Anis, Managing Director 

of the Company, will expire on 29 December 2017. 

The Board in its meeting held on 23 October 2017 

decided to re-appoint her for a further term of five 

years w.e.f. 30 December 2017 and accordingly, 

recommended for approval by the shareowners in 

the ensuing Annual General meeting. Brief resume 

of Ms. Shusmita Anis is appended in Annexure-III of 

this report as per BSEC notification. 

Appointment of Auditors 

The existing Auditors of the Company, M/s. Rahman 

Rahman Huq, Chartered Accountants, retire at this 

Annual General Meeting on completion of their audit 

works for the year ended on 30 June 2017. They 

are not however eligible for reappointment as per 

BSEC order No. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/104/ 

admin/61, Dated-July 08, 2015.
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M/s. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co., Chartered 

Accountants, expressed their interest to be 

appointed as auditors of the Company for the FY 

2017-2018 at a fee of Tk. 630,000/- plus VAT. 

Accordingly, Board recommends the appointment to 

the shareholders of the Company.

Corporate Governance Compliance 

Status

ACI Formulations Limited believes in sustainable 

business development through quality assurance, 

customer focus, innovation, fairness, transparency 

and compliance, and continuous improvement for 

enriching the quality of life of the people. However, 

the Board and management of the Company are 

committed to continuously strive for the highest 

standards and ethics in governance practices with a 

view to safeguarding the interest of its shareowners 

and innumerable stakeholders as well. 

In this connection, we are pleased to confirm that 

the Company has meanwhile complied with all     

the necessary guidelines under BSEC Notification 

No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 

August 2012. The compliance report along with    

the necessary remarks/disclosure is appended in 

Annexure-V of the Directors' Report for the year 

ended on 30 June 2017. In this respect, the 

Certificate of Compliance required under Condition # 

7 of the Notification as provided by M/s. Al-Muqtadir 

Associates, Chartered Secretaries, is also enclosed 

in Annexure-VI of this report.

The People of ACI FL

Our Human Resource department is continuously 

developing our people by conducting customized 

training programs throughout the year. We empower 

our workforce with delegated authority and evaluate 

them under a scientific system called Balanced 

Score Card and reward them according to their 

performance. We acknowledge achievement of 

individuals and promote our employees based on 

fair and transparent evaluation. ACI FL takes its 

social responsibility seriously. Occupational health, 

safety and environmental protection are always on 

top of our priority list. We aspire to achieve better 

results and accordingly set priorities and goals.

Acknowledgements

The Board of Directors firmly believes that ACI FL 

has the necessary strengths, resources and 

commitments to further propel the Company to 

newer heights. The performance of the Company 

during the period under review, even with so many 

challenges confronted, demonstrates the resolves 

and determination of the Board and the employees 

in the Company. At this occasion, the Board 

expresses on record their appreciation to the 

partners of ACI FL, shareowners, suppliers, 

customers, bankers, regulators, media and all other 

well wishers for their support and patronage to 

bring the company to this level. We value their 

continued support to fulfill our mission to improve 

the lives of people. 

Finally, and most importantly, we, on behalf of the 

Board of Directors thank the employees of ACI FL in 

factories, depots, offices and other locations across 

the country, for their untiring efforts. They have 

worked hard, against all odds, uncertainties and 

adversities and built a stronger organisation that 

can create a greater positive impact on the quality 

of life of the people.

Shusmita Anis
Managing Director

On behalf of the Board

Kamran T. Rahman
(Independent Director)

Dhaka, 23 October 2017
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Annexure-I
Number of Board Meetings and Attendance of Directors

Annexure-II
Pattern of Shareholding

As per condition no. 1.5 (xxi) of the Corporate Governance Guidelines 2012 of Bangladesh Securities 

and Exchange Commission, the pattern of shareholding along with name wise details as on 30 June 

2017 are as follows:

Condition no. Name of Shareholders Position No. of Shares held % of Shares held

1.5 (xxi) (a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related parties:

 Advanced Chemical Industries Limited Parent Company 24,066,105 53.48%

1.5 (xxi) (b) Directors:

 Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla Chairman 4,504,500 10.01%

 Dr. F H Ansarey Director 1,129,500 2.51%

 ACI Limited, Represented By N/A 24,066,105 53.48%

      Mrs. Najma Dowla Director 4,500 0.010%

      Dr. Arif Dowla Director 1,800 0.004%

      Ms. Shusmita Anis Managing Director 1,800 0.004%

 Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury Independent Director - -

 Mr. Kamran T. Rahman Independent Director - -

 Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit:

 Ms. Shusmita Anis Chief Executive Officer 1,800 0.004%

 Mr. Pradip Kar Chowdhury Chief Financial Officer - -

 Ms. Sheema Abed Rahman Company Secretary 1,800 0.004%

 Mr. Amitava Saha Head of Internal Audit - -

1.5 (xxi) (c) Executives (Other than Directors, CEO, CS, CFO and Head of Internal Audit) :

 - - - -

1.5 (xxi) (d) Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest in the Company:

 Advanced Chemical Industries Limited Parent Company 24,066,105 53.48%

 Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB) Institution 5,020,452 11.16%

 Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla Chairman 4,504,500 10.01%

As per condition no. 1.5 (xx) of the Corporate Governance Guidelines 2012 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 

Commission, the number of Board Meetings held and the Attendance by each Director during the Financial Year 2016-

2017 are as follows:

Name Position Meeting Held Meeting Attended

Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla Chairman 5 5

Dr. F H Ansarey Director 5 5

Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury Independent Director 5 5

Dr. Arif Dowla Director 5 5

Mrs. Najma Dowla Director 5 2

Mr. Kamran T. Rahman Independent Director 5 5

Ms. Shusmita Anis Managing Director 5 5

*  The Board granted leave of absence to the members who were unable to attend Board meetings as per laws.
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Re-appointment of Directors

Re-appointment of Independent Director

Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla

Mr. M. Anis Ud Dowla, the Chairman of ACI Group, is one of the most successful personalities in Bangladesh 
business circle. He occupies Directorship position in all subsidiary and associated companies of ACI Limited. He has 
maintained a high profile, and has provided leadership to business community in different capacities. Mr. Dowla 
served in the British Oxygen Group of UK in Pakistan, Bangladesh and Kenya for 27 years, including 12 years as 
Managing Director of Bangladesh Oxygen Ltd. In 1987, he became the Group Managing Director of the three ICI 
companies in Bangladesh. With experience gathered while working with British multi-nationals for over 32 years, 
Mr. Dowla has continued to maintain the multinational culture and management style in ACI, with especial emphasis 
on quality, productivity and customer services. 

Mr. Dowla was the President of Narayangonj Chamber of Commerce and Industries in 1977. He has since been 
elected President of the successor trade body named Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce & Industries in 1978, 
1995 and 2010.

Mr. Dowla has considerable contribution in the field of Industrial Relations of the country. He was elected President 
of Bangladesh Employers' Association for four terms, the only national employers' organization, in 1975-1976, 
1976-1977, 1991-1992, 1992-1993 and was also elected as President of Bangladesh Employers' Federation for two 
terms in 2003-2004 and 2004-2005.

He is the Chairman of Pioneer Insurance Company Limited and Director of Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh. He 
has been re-elected as the President of the Bangladesh Seed Association (BSA) for the term of 2017-2019.

Dr. F H Ansarey

Dr. F H Ansarey a Ph.D holder in Ecology brings with him high profile management strength for a highly techno-
dependent company. His wide experience working in MNCs like Ciba-Geigy and local corporate like Shetu 
Corporation Limited in the field of chemical world gives confidence in realizing the business potential of the 
Company. He is one of the promoters of ACI Formulations Limited and has been discharging his duties and 
responsibilities as Director since November 1995. Currently, he acts as the Chief Executive Officer of ACI 
Agribusinesses. He served ACI Limited in the capacity of Executive Director, Agribusiness and General Manager & 
Head of Business Operation, as well. Dr. Ansarey is also the Director of ACI Agrolink Limited, ACI Salt Limited, ACI 
Motors Limited, PremiaFlex Plastics Limited and ACI Godrej Agrovet Pvt. Ltd. In addition to his position in the Board 
of the above companies, he is the Managing Director of ACI Aglrolink Limited, ACI Motors Limited, and PremiaFlex 
Plastics Limited. 

Mr. Kamran T. Rahman 

Mr. Kamran T. Rahman was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company in 2014. He obtained his 
Bachelor of Science Degree in Mechanical Engineering from the Northeastern University, Boston, Massachusetts, 
USA in the year 1981. Mr. Rahman is the Chairman & Managing Director of Pubali Jute Mills Ltd. and the Kapna Tea 
Co. Ltd. (Kapnapahar Tea Estate). He is a former Vice-President (Asia-Pacific) of International Organization of 
Employers (IOE), Geneva, Switzerland as well as a former member of the Governing Body of the International 
Labour Organisation, Geneva, Switzerland. He was also the Vice-President of Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce 
and Industry, Dhaka, from January 2013 - December 2013. He was Director of the Federation of Bangladesh 
Chambers of Commerce and Industry. At present, he is the President of Bangladesh Employer's Federation.

Re-appointment of Managing Director

Ms. Shusmita Anis 

Ms. Shusmita Anis completed her graduation in Fine Arts in Graphics Design from San Jose, California, USA. She 
was inducted as Director of ACI Formulations Limited in 2003 and appointed as the Managing Director of the 
Company in 2012. She has also been a Director of ACI Limited since 2000 and performing as a Member of the Audit 
Committee. Besides, she is the Director of ACI Logistics Limited, ACI Foods Limited, ACI Motors Limited, PremiaFlex 
Plastics Limited, Creative Communication Limited, Consolidated Chemicals Limited, ACI Pure Flour Limited, 
Stochastic Logic Limited, ACI Salt Limited, ACI Chemicals Limited, Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Limited, ACI 
Foundation and Pioneer Insurance Company Ltd. 

Annexure-III
Brief Resume of the Directors who Seek Re-appointment

In compliance with condition no. 1.5 (xxii) of the Corporate Governance Guidelines-2012 of Bangladesh Securities and 

Exchange Commission, brief resumes of the Directors who seek re-appointment are as follows:
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Annexure-IV

CERTIFICATE OF DUE DILIGENCE BY CEO & CFO

(Under Condition-6 of BSEC Corporate Governance Guidelines)

To the Board of Directors of

ACI Formulations Limited

In compliance with condition no. 6 of the Corporate Governance Guidelines of Bangladesh 

Securities and Exchange Commission Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 

dated 07 August 2012, we the undersigned, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial 

Officer (CFO) of ACI Formulations Limited, do hereby certify before the Board that we have 

thoroughly reviewed the Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 

30th June 2017, and state that : 

a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 

fact or contain statements that might be misleading,

b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and 

are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws, and

c) to the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company has not entered into any 

transaction during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the 

Company's codes of conduct.

Dhaka,

October 23, 2017

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Status of the compliance with the conditions imposed by the Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-

158/134/Admin/44 dated 07 August 2012 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) is 

appended below:  
      

(Report under Condition No. 7.00)

1.0 Board of Directors

1.1 Board’s Size

The number of the Board members of the Company shall not be less than 5 

(five) and more than 20 (twenty).

1.2 Independent Directors (IDs)

1.2(i)            At least one fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in the Company’s Board 

shall be Independent Directors (IDs).

1.2(ii)(a)      ID either does not hold share in the company or holds less than one (1%) shares 

of the total paid up shares of the company;

1.2(ii)(b)     ID is not sponsor of the Company and is not connected with any sponsor or 

director or shareholder who holds one percent or more shares of the Company 

on the basis of family relationship;

1.2(ii)(c)       ID does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise, with 

the company or its subsidiary/associated companies;

1.2(ii)(d)        ID is not a member, director or officer of any stock exchange;

1.2(ii)(e)       ID is not a shareholder, director or officer of any member of stock exchange or 

an intermediary of the capital market;

1.2(ii)(f )       ID is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an executive during 

the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned company’s statutory audit firm;

1.2(ii)(g)       ID shall not be an independent director in more than 3 (three) listed companies;

1.2(ii)(h)       ID has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in 

payment of any loan to a bank or a Non-Bank Financial Institution (NBFI);

1.2(ii)(i)         ID has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude.

1.2(iii)        IDs shall be appointed by the Board of Directors and approved by the shareholders 

in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

1.2(iv)           The post of IDs cannot remain vacant for more than 90 (ninety) days.

1.2(v)          The Board shall lay down a code of conduct of all Board members and annual 
compliance of the code to be recorded.

1.2(vi)           The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period of 3 (three) 

years, which may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

1.3                Qualification of Independent Director (ID)

1.3(i)           Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is 

able to ensure compliance with financial, regulatory and corporate laws and 

can make meaningful contribution to business.

1.3(ii)        The person should be a Business Leader / Corporate Leader / Bureaucrat / 

University Teacher with Economics or Business Studies or Law background / 

Professionals like Chartered Accountants, Cost & Management Accountants, 

Chartered Secretaries. The independent director must have at least 12 

(twelve) years of corporate management / professional experiences.

1.3(iii)           In special cases the above qualifications may be relaxed subject to prior approval 

of the Commission.

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Condition
No

Title
Compliance 
Status as on 

30th June 2017
Remarks

The Board consists of  7 

(seven) members

Do

Do

Do

Do

Do

Do

Do

Do

Do

Appointments are approved in AGM

No such vacancy occurred

There are written codes of conduct 

to which the Board members are 

obliged to comply with

The Independent Directors are 

in their extended term of office.

The Independent Directors 

have requisite qualification and 

experience.

Not applicable

There are two Independent 

Directors (ID) in the Board

Required declarations made by 

the Directors

N/A

Annexure-V

Status of Compliance with the Corporate Governance Guidelines (CGG)
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Contd.

1.4                Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer:

                    The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the 

companies shall be filled by different individuals. The Chairman of the company 

shall be elected from among the directors of the Company. The Board of 

Directors shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of the Chairman 

and the Chief Executive Officer.

1.5                Directors' Report to Shareholders:  

1.5(i)             Industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry.

1.5(ii)            Segment-wise or product-wise performance.

1.5(iii)           Risks and concerns.

1.5(iv)           Discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin.

1.5(v)            Discussion on continuity of any Extra-Ordinary gain or loss.

1.5(vi)           Statement of all related party transactions.

1.5(vii)        Utilization of proceeds from public issues, rights issues and/or through any 

others instruments.

1.5(viii)       An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes for 

Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Offer, Direct 

Listing, etc.

1.5(ix)         If significant variance occurs between Quarterly Financial performance and 

Annual Financial Statements the management shall explain about the 

variance on their Annual Report.

1.5(x)            Remuneration to directors including independent directors.

1.5(xi)         The financial statements prepared by the management of the issuer company 

present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and 

changes in equity.

1.5(xii)          Proper books of account of the issuer Company have been maintained.

1.5(xiii)          Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of 

the financial statements and that the accounting estimates are based on 

reasonable and prudent judgment.

1.5(xiv)      International Accounting Standards (IAS) / Bangladesh Accounting Standards 

(BAS) / International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) / Bangladesh 

Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been 

followed in preparation of the financial statements and any departure there-

from has been adequately disclosed.

1.5(xv)      The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively 

implemented and monitored.

1.5(xvi)          There are no significant doubts upon the issuer company’s ability to continue as 

a going concern. If the issuer company is not considered to be a going concern, 

the fact along with reasons thereof should be disclosed.

1.5(xvii)       Significant deviations from the last year’s operating results of the issuer 

company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof should be explained.

1.5(xviii)      Key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) years shall be 

summarized.

Condition
No

Title
Compliance 
Status as on 

30th June 2017
Remarks

Do

Do

The Directors' Report complies 

with the guideline

Chairman and CEO of the 

Company are different 

individuals with clearly defined  

roles & responsibilities

Do

No such issues in

FY 2016-2017

Do

Do

The financial statements are 

prepared following the 

guideline

In practice

Do

Do

Do

The Directors' Report complies 

with the guideline

The Directors' Report complies 

with the guideline

In practice

Do

The financial statements are 
prepared following the 

guideline

The financial statements are 

prepared following the 

guidelines

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
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1.5(xix)         If the issuer company has not declared dividend (cash or stock) for the year, 

the reasons thereof shall be given.

1.5(xx)       The number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by each 

director shall be disclosed.

1.5(xxi)          Pattern of shareholding :

1.5(xxi)(a)      Parent / Subsidiary / Associated Companies and other related parties (name 

wise details);

1.5(xxi)(b)    Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head 

of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children (name wise details);

1.5(xxi)(c)      Executives; 

1.5(xxi)(d)     Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the company 

(name wise details).

1.5(xxii)         Appointment / reappointment of director : 

1.5(xxii)(a)     A brief resume of the director;

1.5(xxii)(b)     Nature of his / her expertise in specific functional areas;

1.5(xxii)(c)     Names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and the 

membership of committees of the board.

2.0                Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Internal Audit and Company Secretary (CS):  

2.1                 Appointment:

                 The company shall appoint a Chief Financial Officer (CFO), a Head of Internal 

Audit (Internal Control and Compliance) and a Company Secretary (CS). The 

Board of Directors should clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and 

duties of the CFO, the Head of Internal Audit and the CS.

2.2                Requirement to attend the Board Meetings

                    The CFO and the Company Secretary of the companies shall attend the meetings 

of the Board of Directors, provided that the CFO and/or the Company Secretary 

shall not attend such part of a meeting of the Board of Directors which involves 

consideration of an agenda item relating to their personal matters.

3.0                 Audit Committee

3.(i)              The Company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board 

of Directors.

3.(ii)          The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of Directors in ensuring that the 

financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the business.

3.(iii)            The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board of Directors. The duties 

of the Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing.

3.1                Constitution of the Audit Committee:  

3.1(i)             The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members.

3.1(ii)            The Board of Directors shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who 

shall be directors of the Company and shall include at least 1 (one) 

Independent Director.

3.1(iii)           All members of the Audit Committee should be “financially literate” and at least 

1 (one) member shall have accounting or related financial management 

experience.

Condition
No

Title
Compliance 
Status as on 

30th June 2017
Remarks

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Stated in Annexure-I of the 

Directors' Report

 Annexure-II of the Directors' 

Report complies with the 

guideline.

Do

Do

The Directors' Report complies 

with the guideline

Do

Annexure-III complies with the 

guideline

Details are given in the "Audit 

Committee Report".

The Committee discharges 

duties as per BSEC guidelines.

The Committee discharges duties 

as per ToR  approved by the Board.

The Committee comprises of   

3 (three) members

All members of the  Committee 

are Directors and include one 

Independent Director.

The Committee Members are 

selected by the Board as per 

guidelines.

The CFO, HIA and CS are 

different individuals and their 

roles & responsibilities are 

separately defined.

The CFO and CS attend the 

Board Meeting as required by 

the guildeline.

Do

Complied Do
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Contd.

None

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

None

None

None

None

None

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Condition
No

Title
Compliance 
Status as on 

30th June 2017
Remarks

There was no IPO/RPO/ Right 

Issue in FY 2016-2017

In practice

The Audit Committee report is 

published in the Annual Report

There has been no such 

reportable case in FY 2016-2017

Do

Do

No such vacancy occurred

The Chairman of the Audit Committee 

is an Independent Director.

Audit Committee's roles are 

clearly defined in its TOR.

In practice

In practice

In practice

Complied Do

Do

Complied Do

Complied Do

Complied Do

Complied Do

Complied Do

Complied

Complied

Do

Do

Do

Required declaration made by 

the Auditors

Do

Do

3.1(iv)           Filling of casual vacancy in the Audit Committee.

3.1(v)            The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee.

3.1(vi)       The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute without 

Independent Director.

3.2                Chairman of the Audit Committee  

3.2(i)           The Board of Directors shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to 

be Chairman of the Audit Committee, who shall be an independent director.

3.2(ii)        Chairman of the audit committee shall remain present in the Annual General 

Meeting (AGM).

3.3                Role of Audit Committee:

3.3(i)             Oversee the financial reporting process.

3.3(ii)            Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles

3.3(iii)           Monitor Internal Control Risk management process.

3.3(iv)           Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.

3.3(v)       Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before 

submission to the board for approval.

3.3(vi)       Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial 

statements before submission to the Board for approval.

3.3(vii)           Review the adequacy of internal audit function.

3.3(viii)      Review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the 

management.

3.3(ix)        Review Management Letters / Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by 

statutory auditors.

3.3(x)          Disclosure of the company to the Committee about the uses/applications of 

funds raised through IPO/RPO/Right issue 

3.4                Reporting of the Audit Committee:

3.4.1(i)          The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board of Directors.

3.4.1(ii)        The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the following findings, if any:- 

3.4.1(ii)(a)     Report on conflicts of interests;

3.4.1(ii)(b)    Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect in the internal 

control system;

3.4.1(ii)(c)     Suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws, rules and regulations;

3.4.1(ii)(d)     Any other matter which shall be disclosed to the Board of Directors immediately.

3.4.2              Reporting to the Authorities (BSEC): 

            (if any material impact on the financial condition and results of operation, 

unreasonably ignored by the management).

3.5                Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors

                    Report on the activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report 

made to the Board of Directors under condition 3.4.1 (ii).

4.0                Non-engagement of External / Statutory Auditors:  

4.0(i)             Non-engagement in Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions;

4.0(ii)            Non-engagement in Financial information systems design and implementation;

4.0(iii)        Non-engagement in Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting 

records or financial statements;
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Do

Do

Required declaration is 

enclosed in Annexure- IV

Certificate is enclosed in 

Annexure - VI

Annexure-V

complies with the guideline

4.0(iv)           Non-engagement in Broker-dealer services;

4.0(v)            Non-engagement in Actuarial services;

4.0(vi)           Non-engagement in Internal Audit service;

4.0(vii)           Non-engagement in any other services that the Audit Committee determines;

4.0(viii)         No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any share of 

the Company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of 

that Company;

4.0(ix)     Non-engagement audit/certification services on compliance of corporate 

governance as required under Clause (i) of condition No.7;

5.0                Subsidiary Company  

5.0(i)          Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of Directors of the holding 

company shall be made applicable to the composition of the Board of Directors 

of the subsidiary company.

5.0(ii)          At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of Directors of the holding 

company shall be a director on the Board of Directors of the subsidiary 

company.

5.0(iii)           The minutes of the Board Meeting of the subsidiary company shall be placed 

for review at the following Board Meeting of the holding company.

5.0(iv)           The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding company shall 

state that they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also.

5.0(v)        The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the financial 

statements, in particular the investments made by the subsidiary company.

6.0                "Duties of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO):"  

                     The CEO and CFO certified to the Board that :-  

6.0(i)(a)         They have reviewed financial statements for the year and the financial statements 

do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading;

6.0(i)(b)        The financial statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s 

affairs and are in compliance with affairs and are in compliance with applicable 

laws.

6.0(ii)           There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 

the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the 

Company’s code of conduct.

7.0                Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance  

7.0(i)          Obtaining certificate from a practicing Professional Accountant / Secretary 

(Chartered Accountant / Cost and Management Accountant / Chartered 

Secretary) regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 

Guidelines of the Commission and inclusion of the same in the Annual 

Report.

7.0(ii)       Directors statement along with annexure as to the compliance with these 

conditions, in accordance with the Annexure prescribed by the Commission

Complied 

Complied 

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Condition
No

Title
Compliance 
Status as on 

30th June 2017
Remarks

Do

Do

Do

Declared by the Auditors

Do

Do

Complied Do

Do

Do

Do

Complied In practice
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We have examined compliance to the BSEC guidelines on Corporate Governance by   

ACI Formulations Limited for the year ended 30th June 2017. These guidelines relate 

to the Notification no. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7th August 2012 of 

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) on Corporate Governance.

Such compliance to the codes of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 

Company. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof 

as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of Corporate 

Governance. This is a scrutiny and verification only and not an expression of opinion or 

audit on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations or 

representations provided to us, we certify that, subject to the remarks and observations 

as reported in the attached Compliance Statement, the Company has complied with the 

conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned guidelines 

issued by BSEC.

We also state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 

the Company nor a certification on the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 

Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. This is also no endorsement 

about quality of contents in the Annual Report of the Company for FY 2016-2017.

Annexure-VI

Certificate of Compliance to the Shareholders of

ACI Formulations Limited

(As required under the BSEC Corporate Governance Guidelines)

Dhaka, October 25, 2017
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ACI Formulations Limited

Auditors' Report & Audited
Financial Statements as at and for the year ended

30 June 2017



Report on the Financial Statements  

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of ACI Formulations Limited ("the Company") as 
well as the consolidated financial statements of ACI Formulations Limited and its subsidiaries ("the Group"), which 
comprise the separate and the consolidated statements of financial position as at 30 June 2017, statements of 
profit or loss, statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity, 
statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. The financial statements of three subsidiaries as disclosed in note 38 to these financial 
statements were not audited by us.  

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements of the 
Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with Bangladesh Financial 
Reporting Standards, the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the separate financial statements of 
the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor's Responsibility     

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the separate financial statements of the Company and the 
consolidated financial statements of the Group based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
Bangladesh Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements of the 
Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
separate financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The 
procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the separate financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements of the Company and the consolidated 
financial statements of the Group in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the separate financial 
statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the separate financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the 
Group give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as well as of the Group as at 30 June 
2017, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant notification 
issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also report the following:  

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof; 

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as it appeared 
from our examination of these books; 

(c)  the separate and the consolidated statements of financial position, statements of profit or loss and statements 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 

(d)  the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Group’s business. 

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Shareholders of ACI Formulations Limited

Dhaka, 23 October 2017 Rahman Rahman Huq

Chartered Accountants

chittagong@kpmg.com

dhaka@kpmg.com
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ACI Formulations Limited

Statement of financial position

Dhaka, 23 October 2017

In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Assets

Property, plant and equipment 8 1,792,755,192  1,739,759,689  1,744,120,249 

Investments 9 7,067,287  14,934,040  14,891,144 

Non-current assets  1,799,822,479  1,754,693,729  1,759,011,393 
          

Inventories 10 1,384,424,562  994,888,240  897,742,081 

Trade receivables 11 1,326,720,349  1,187,990,035  1,263,209,784 

Other receivables 12 7,096,188  10,085,588  9,738,191 

Inter- company receivables 13 39,933,951  23,556,817  21,201,708 

Advances, deposits and prepayments 14 399,976,801  390,304,295  309,727,015 

Cash and cash equivalents 15 138,354,624  112,511,708  92,773,885 

Current assets  3,296,506,475  2,719,336,683  2,594,392,664 

Total assets  5,096,328,954  4,474,030,412  4,353,404,057 
          

Equity

Share capital 16 450,000,000  450,000,000  450,000,000 

Revaluation reserve  1,136,392,931  1,136,392,931  1,136,392,931 

Retained earnings  868,404,890  696,967,963  764,069,899 

Total equity  2,454,797,821  2,283,360,894  2,350,462,830 
          

Liabilities          

Employee benefits 17 30,560,130  29,271,614  15,864,476 

Deferred tax liabilities 18 51,789,493  47,650,008  61,269,695 

Non-current liabilities  82,349,623  76,921,622  77,134,171 
          

Bank overdrafts 19 85,843,847  68,781,653  51,877,357 

Loans and borrowings 20 1,875,875,406  944,237,189  787,827,659 

Trade payables 21 56,095,428  28,305,846  64,893,640 

Other payables 22 256,273,023  398,773,731  309,722,032 

Inter-company payables 23 56,695,146  403,437,863  491,138,072 

Provision for tax 24 228,398,660  270,211,614  220,348,296 

Current liabilities  2,559,181,510  2,113,747,896  1,925,807,056 

Total liabilities  2,641,531,133  2,190,669,518  2,002,941,227 

Total equity and liabilities  5,096,328,954  4,474,030,412  4,353,404,057 
         

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of same date.

Rahman Rahman Huq

Chartered Accountants

 Managing Director         Director        Company Secretary
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    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Revenue 25 3,629,430,879  4,631,970,028  1,625,484,898  3,006,485,130 

Cost of sales 26 (2,521,617,906) (3,354,887,078) (1,148,546,008) (2,206,341,070)

Gross profit  1,107,812,973  1,277,082,950  476,938,890  800,144,060 

Other income 27 4,380,330  8,318,428  2,765,826  5,552,602 

Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 28 (618,540,895) (739,363,582) (317,506,138) (421,857,444)

Operating profit  493,652,408  546,037,796  162,198,578  383,839,218 

Finance costs, net 29 (118,151,966) (83,142,140) (28,891,531) (54,250,609)

Profit before contribution to WPPF  375,500,442  462,895,656  133,307,047  329,588,609 

Contribution to WPPF  (18,775,022) (23,144,782) (6,665,352) (16,479,430)

Profit before tax  356,725,420  439,750,874  126,641,695  313,109,179 

Income tax expense 30

 Current tax  (91,149,008) (128,990,254) (49,863,318) (79,126,936)

 Deferred tax income/(expense)  (4,139,485) 14,779,849  13,619,687  1,160,162 

   (95,288,493) (114,210,405) (36,243,631) (77,966,774)

Profit after tax  261,436,927  325,540,469  90,398,064  235,142,405 

          

Earnings per share 31

Basic earnings per share  5.81  7.23  2.01  5.23 

        

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ACI Formulations Limited

Statement of profit or loss

Dhaka, 23 October 2017

As per our report of same date.

Rahman Rahman Huq

Chartered Accountants

 Managing Director         Director        Company Secretary
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ACI Formulations Limited

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Dhaka, 23 October 2017

As per our report of same date.

Rahman Rahman Huq

Chartered Accountants

    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Profit after tax  261,436,927  325,540,469  90,398,064  235,142,405 

         

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment -  459,408,825  -  459,408,825 

Related tax on other comprehensive income -  (14,676,207) -  (14,676,207)

Other comprehensive income, net of tax -  444,732,618  -  444,732,618 

Total comprehensive income  261,436,927  770,273,087  90,398,064  679,875,023 

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.           

 Managing Director         Director        Company Secretary
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ACI Formulations Limited

Statement of changes in equity

  Share Revaluation Retained 
In Taka  capital reserve earnings Total

Balance at 1 July 2016  450,000,000  1,136,392,931  696,967,963  2,283,360,894 
     
Total comprehensive income     

Profit after tax  -  -  261,436,927  261,436,927 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax  -  -  -  - 

Total comprehensive income  -  -  261,436,927  261,436,927 
     
Transactions with owners of the company     

Contributions and distributions     

Interim dividends  -  -  (90,000,000) (90,000,000)

Total transactions with owners of the company -  -  (90,000,000) (90,000,000)
     
Transactions recognised directly in equity     

Realisation of revaluation surplus  -  -  -  - 

Total transactions recognised directly in equity  -  -  -  - 

Balance at 30 June 2017   450,000,000  1,136,392,931  868,404,890  2,454,797,821 

  Share Revaluation Retained 
In Taka  capital reserve earnings Total

Balance at 1 January 2016  450,000,000  1,136,392,931  764,069,899  2,350,462,830 
     
Total comprehensive income     

Profit after tax  -  -  90,398,064  90,398,064 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax  -  -  -  - 

Total comprehensive income  -  -  90,398,064  90,398,064 
     
Transactions with owners of the company     

Contributions and distributions     

Final dividends for 2015  -  -  (157,500,000) (157,500,000)

Total transactions with owners of the company -  -  (157,500,000) (157,500,000)
     
Transactions recognised directly in equity     

Realisation of revaluation surplus  -  -  -  - 

Total transactions recognised directly in equity -  -  -  - 

Balance at 30 June 2016   450,000,000  1,136,392,931  696,967,963  2,283,360,894 

  Share Revaluation Retained 
In Taka  capital reserve earnings Total

Balance at 1 January 2015  450,000,000  692,960,311  662,627,496  1,805,587,807 
     
Total comprehensive income     
Profit after tax  -  -  235,142,405  235,142,405 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax  -  444,732,618  -  444,732,618 

Total comprehensive income  -  444,732,618  235,142,405  679,875,023 
     
Transactions with owners of the company     

Contributions and distributions     
Final dividends for 2014  -  -  (135,000,000) (135,000,000)

Total transactions with owners of the company -  -  (135,000,000) (135,000,000)
     
Transactions recognised directly in equity     
Realisation of revaluation surplus  -  (1,299,998) 1,299,998  - 

Total transactions recognised directly in equity -  (1,299,998) 1,299,998  - 

Balance at 31 December 2015   450,000,000  1,136,392,931  764,069,899  2,350,462,830 

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 For the year ended 30 June 2017

 For the six-month period ended 30 June 2016

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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ACI Formulations Limited

Statement of cash flows

    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from customers  3,490,700,565  4,208,799,155  1,678,127,325  2,530,671,830 

Cash received from other income  4,380,330  8,234,409  2,757,828  5,476,581 

   3,495,080,895  4,217,033,564  1,680,885,153  2,536,148,411 

Cash received/(paid) from/for:

 Purchase of inventory  (2,839,139,692) (3,502,554,378) (1,245,771,802) (2,256,782,576)

 Other receivables  2,989,401  11,576,675  (347,397) 11,924,072 

 Operating expenses  (685,378,982) (624,730,597) (290,994,981) (333,735,616)

 Other payables  (26,099,599) 34,705,468  26,870,288  7,835,180 

 Payment for WPPF  (6,665,352) (33,097,532) (16,860,945) (16,236,587)

 Advances, deposits and prepayments  (7,690,076) (42,550,688) (11,382,387) (31,168,301)

   (3,561,984,300) (4,156,651,052) (1,538,487,224) (2,618,163,828)

Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities  (66,903,405) 60,382,512  142,397,929  (82,015,417)

         

 Interest paid  (92,619,989) (78,522,559) (25,759,170) (52,763,389)

 Income tax paid  (134,944,391) (166,621,116) (69,194,893) (97,426,223)

   (227,564,380) (245,143,675) (94,954,063) (150,189,612)

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities  (294,467,785) (184,761,163) 47,443,866  (232,205,029)

         

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (110,117,465) (111,700,770) (20,505,250) (91,195,520)

Sale proceed from property, plant and equipment -  1,696,010  169,130  1,526,880 

Investment  (29,913) (617,269) (42,896) (574,373)

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (110,147,378) (110,622,029) (20,379,016) (90,243,013)

         

Cash flows from financing activities 

Inter-company debts received/(paid)  (363,119,851) 310,463,448  (90,055,318) 400,518,766 

Proceeds from loans and borrowings  931,638,216  231,651,074  156,409,530  75,241,544 

Dividends paid  (155,122,480) (224,452,531) (90,585,535) (133,866,996)

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities 413,395,885  317,661,991  (24,231,323) 341,893,314 

         

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,780,722  22,278,799  2,833,527  19,445,272 

Opening cash and cash equivalent  43,730,055  21,451,256  40,896,528  21,451,256 

Closing cash and cash equivalents at reporting date 52,510,777  43,730,055  43,730,055  40,896,528 

         

Closing cash and cash equivalents represent:

Cash and cash equivalents 15 138,354,624  112,511,708  112,511,708  92,773,885 

Bank overdraft 19 (85,843,847) (68,781,653) (68,781,653) (51,877,357)

   52,510,777  43,730,055  43,730,055  40,896,528 

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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 Managing Director         Director        Company Secretary

ACI Formulations Limited

Consolidated statement of financial position

Dhaka, 23 October 2017

As per our report of same date.

Rahman Rahman Huq

Chartered Accountants

In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Assets

Property, plant and equipment 8(a) 1,795,620,835  1,743,007,087  1,747,967,897 

Investments 9(a) 3,118,953  3,089,040  3,046,144 

Intangible assets  5,147,792  12,382,918  12,382,918 

Non-current assets  1,803,887,580  1,758,479,045  1,763,396,959 

          

Inventories 10(a) 1,397,198,792  1,004,511,450  899,366,357 

Trade receivables 11(a) 1,339,390,192  1,190,805,166  1,264,626,778 

Other receivables 12 7,088,014  10,085,589  9,803,584 

Inter- company receivable 13(a) -  212,659  - 

Advances, deposits and prepayments 14(a) 404,723,417  394,558,075  311,064,400 

Cash and cash equivalents 15(a) 150,743,214  114,893,750  95,685,266 

Current assets  3,299,143,629  2,715,066,689  2,580,546,385 

Total assets  5,103,031,209  4,473,545,734  4,343,943,344 

          

Equity          

Share capital 16 450,000,000  450,000,000  450,000,000 

Revaluation reserve  1,136,392,931  1,136,392,931  1,136,392,931 

Retained earnings  859,292,594  686,155,155  754,444,449 

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company  2,445,685,525  2,272,548,086  2,340,837,380 

Non controlling interest  (210,452) (231,655) (207,423)

Total equity  2,445,475,073  2,272,316,431  2,340,629,957 

          

Liabilities          

Employee benefits 17 30,560,130  29,271,614  15,864,476 

Deferred tax liabilities  51,201,931  47,075,010  60,991,894 

Non-current liabilities  81,762,061  76,346,624  76,856,370 

          

Bank overdrafts 19 85,843,847  68,781,653  51,877,357 

Loans and borrowings 20(a) 1,881,364,554  948,550,813  787,827,659 

Trade payables 21(a) 66,025,151  34,480,801  64,905,022 

Other payables 22(a) 257,187,927  399,342,642  310,302,679 

Inter-company payables 23 56,695,146  403,437,863  491,138,072 

Provision for tax 24(a) 228,677,450  270,288,907  220,406,228 

Current liabilities  2,575,794,075  2,124,882,679  1,926,457,017 

Total liabilities  2,657,556,136  2,201,229,303  2,003,313,387 

Total equity and liabilities  5,103,031,209  4,473,545,734  4,343,943,344 

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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 Managing Director         Director        Company Secretary

ACI Formulations Limited

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Dhaka, 23 October 2017

As per our report of same date.

Rahman Rahman Huq

Chartered Accountants

    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Revenue 25(a) 3,663,013,573  4,639,985,562  1,628,411,658  3,011,573,904 

Cost of sales 26(a) (2,552,157,279) (3,362,685,096) (1,151,382,264) (2,211,302,832)

Gross profit  1,110,856,294  1,277,300,466  477,029,394  800,271,072 

Other income 27 4,380,330  8,318,428  2,765,826  5,552,602 

Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 28(a) (619,196,713) (748,688,489) (319,071,567) (429,616,922)

Operating profit  496,039,911  536,930,405  160,723,653  376,206,752 

Finance costs, net 29(a) (118,619,710) (83,228,503) (28,906,031) (54,322,472)

Profit before contribution to WPPF  377,420,201  453,701,902  131,817,622  321,884,280 

Contribution to WPPF  (18,775,022) (23,144,782) (6,665,352) (16,479,430)

Profit before tax  358,645,179  430,557,120  125,152,270  305,404,850 

Income tax expense 30(a)

 Current tax  (91,350,505) (129,035,059) (49,882,679) (79,152,380)

 Deferred tax income/(expense)  (4,126,921) 15,148,819  13,916,883  1,231,936 

   (95,477,426) (113,886,240) (35,965,796) (77,920,444)

Profit after tax  263,167,753  316,670,880  89,186,474  227,484,406 

           

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company  263,137,439  316,848,272  89,210,706  227,637,566 

Non-controlling interest  30,314  (177,392) (24,232) (153,160)

   263,167,753  316,670,880  89,186,474  227,484,406 

Earnings per share 31.1(a)

Basic earnings per share  5.85  7.04  1.98  5.06 

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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 Managing Director         Director        Company Secretary

ACI Formulations Limited

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Dhaka, 23 October 2017

As per our report of same date.

Rahman Rahman Huq

Chartered Accountants

    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Profit after tax  263,167,753  316,670,880  89,186,474  227,484,406 

           

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment -  459,408,825  -  459,408,825 

Related tax on other comprehensive income -  (14,676,207) -  (14,676,207)

Other comprehensive income, net of tax -  444,732,618  -  444,732,618 

Total comprehensive income  263,167,753  761,403,498  89,186,474  672,217,024 

           

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company  263,137,439  761,580,890  89,210,706  672,370,184 

Non-controlling interest  30,314  (177,392) (24,232) (153,160)

   263,167,753  761,403,498  89,186,474  672,217,024 

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.



 
 

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
A
tt

ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 o

w
n
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y

 
  

  
  

  
 

S
h
a
re

  
R
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
ta

in
e
d
 

 
N

o
n
-c

o
n
tr

o
ll
in

g
 

To
ta

l
In

 T
a
k
a
 

 
ca

p
it
a
l 

re
se

rv
e
 

e
a
rn

in
g
s 

To
ta

l 
in

te
re

st
s 

e
q
u
it
y

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
1

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
 

4
5
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
  

1
,1

3
6
,3

9
2
,9

3
1
  

6
8
6
,1

5
5
,1

5
5
  

2
,2

7
2
,5

4
8
,0

8
6
  

(2
3
1
,6

5
5
) 

2
,2

7
2
,3

1
6
,4

3
1
 

T
o

ta
l 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i

n
c
o

m
e

P
ro

fi
t 

a
ft

e
r 

ta
x
 

- 
 

- 
 

2
6
3
,1

3
7
,4

3
9
  

2
6
3
,1

3
7
,4

3
9
  

3
0
,3

1
4
  

2
6
3
,1

6
7
,7

5
3
 

O
th

e
r 

co
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

v
e
 i
n
co

m
e
, 

n
e
t 

o
f 

ta
x
 

- 
 

- 
 

 -
  

- 
 

- 
 

- 
T
o

ta
l 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i

n
c
o

m
e
 

- 
 

- 
 

2
6
3
,1

3
7
,4

3
9
  

2
6
3
,1

3
7
,4

3
9
  

3
0
,3

1
4
  

2
6
3
,1

6
7
,7

5
3
 

T
ra

n
s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

it
h

 o
w

n
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
  
  

  
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
  
  

  
 

R
e
a
li
sa

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 s

u
rp

lu
s 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
C

h
a
n

g
e
s
 i

n
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

  
  
  

 
A
d
ju

st
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

st
ri
k
in

g
 o

ff
 o

f 
su

b
si

d
ia

ry
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

(9
,1

1
1
) 

(9
,1

1
1
)

T
o

ta
l 

tr
a
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

it
h

 o
w

n
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

(9
,1

1
1
) 

(9
,1

1
1
)

T
ra

n
s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 d
ir

e
c
tl

y
 i

n
 e

q
u

it
y

In
te

ri
m

 d
iv

id
e
n
d
s 

- 
 

- 
 

(9
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

(9
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

- 
 

(9
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
)

T
o

ta
l 

tr
a
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 d
ir

e
c
tl

y
 i

n
 e

q
u

it
y
 

- 
 

- 
 

(9
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

(9
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

 -
  

(9
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
)

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
3

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

7
 

4
5
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
  

1
,1

3
6
,3

9
2
,9

3
1
  

8
5
9
,2

9
2
,5

9
4
  

2
,4

4
5
,6

8
5
,5

2
5
  

(2
1
0
,4

5
2
) 

2
,4

4
5
,4

7
5
,0

7
3
 

 
 

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
A
tt

ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 o

w
n
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y

 
  

  
  

  
 

S
h
a
re

  
R
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
ta

in
e
d
 

 
N

o
n
-c

o
n
tr

o
ll
in

g
 

To
ta

l
In

 T
a
k
a
 

 
ca

p
it
a
l 

re
se

rv
e
 

e
a
rn

in
g
s 

To
ta

l 
in

te
re

st
s 

e
q
u
it
y

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
1

 J
a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 
4
5
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
  

1
,1

3
6
,3

9
2
,9

3
1
  

7
5
4
,4

4
4
,4

4
9
  

2
,3

4
0
,8

3
7
,3

8
0
  

(2
0
7
,4

2
3
) 

2
,3

4
0
,6

2
9
,9

5
7
 

T
o

ta
l 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i

n
c
o

m
e
  

  
  

 
P
ro

fi
t 

a
ft

e
r 

ta
x
 

- 
 

- 
 

8
9
,2

1
0
,7

0
6
  

8
9
,2

1
0
,7

0
6
  

(2
4
,2

3
2
) 

8
9
,1

8
6
,4

7
4
 

O
th

e
r 

co
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

v
e
 i
n
co

m
e
, 

n
e
t 

o
f 

ta
x
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

 -
  

- 
 

 -
 

T
o

ta
l 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i

n
c
o

m
e
 

- 
 

- 
 

8
9
,2

1
0
,7

0
6
  

8
9
,2

1
0
,7

0
6
  

(2
4
,2

3
2
) 

8
9
,1

8
6
,4

7
4
 

T
ra

n
s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

it
h

 o
w

n
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
  

  
  

 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
  

  
  

 
R
e
a
li
sa

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 s

u
rp

lu
s 

- 
 

- 
 

 -
  

- 
 

- 
 

 -
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 i

n
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

  
  

  
 

A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 o

f 
su

b
si

d
ia

ry
 w

it
h
 N

C
I 

- 
 

 -
  

 -
  

- 
 

- 
 

- 
T
o

ta
l 

tr
a
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

it
h

 o
w

n
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
 

- 
 

 -
  

 -
  

- 
 

- 
 

- 
T
ra

n
s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 d
ir

e
c
tl

y
 i

n
 e

q
u

it
y
  

  
  

 
F
in

a
l 
d
iv

id
e
n
d
s 

fo
r 

2
0
1
5
 

- 
 

 -
  

(1
5
7
,5

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

(1
5
7
,5

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

- 
 

(1
5
7
,5

0
0
,0

0
0
)

T
o

ta
l 

tr
a
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 d
ir

e
c
tl

y
 i

n
 e

q
u

it
y
 

- 
 

- 
 

(1
5
7
,5

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

(1
5
7
,5

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

- 
 

(1
5
7
,5

0
0
,0

0
0
)

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
3

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

6
 

4
5
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
  

1
,1

3
6
,3

9
2
,9

3
1
  

6
8
6
,1

5
5
,1

5
5
  

2
,2

7
2
,5

4
8
,0

8
6
  

(2
3
1
,6

5
5
) 

2
,2

7
2
,3

1
6
,4

3
1
 

 
 

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
A
tt

ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 o

w
n
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y

 
  

  
  

  
 

S
h
a
re

  
R
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
ta

in
e
d
 

 
N

o
n
-c

o
n
tr

o
ll
in

g
 

To
ta

l
In

 T
a
k
a
 

 
ca

p
it
a
l 

re
se

rv
e
 

e
a
rn

in
g
s 

To
ta

l 
in

te
re

st
s 

e
q
u
it
y

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

t 
1

 J
a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0

1
5

 
4
5
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
  

6
9
2
,9

6
0
,3

1
1
  

6
6
1
,4

7
5
,8

2
1
  

1
,8

0
4
,4

3
6
,1

3
2
  

(6
7
8
,1

9
9
) 

1
,8

0
3
,7

5
7
,9

3
3
 

T
o

ta
l 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i

n
c
o

m
e
  

  
  

 
P
ro

fi
t 

a
ft

e
r 

ta
x
 

- 
 

- 
 

2
2
7
,6

3
7
,5

6
6
  

2
2
7
,6

3
7
,5

6
6
  

(1
5
3
,1

6
0
) 

2
2
7
,4

8
4
,4

0
6
 

O
th

e
r 

co
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

v
e
 i
n
co

m
e
, 

n
e
t 

o
f 

ta
x
 

- 
 

4
4
4
,7

3
2
,6

1
8
  

- 
 

4
4
4
,7

3
2
,6

1
8
  

- 
 

4
4
4
,7

3
2
,6

1
8
 

T
o

ta
l 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i

n
c
o

m
e
 

- 
 

4
4
4
,7

3
2
,6

1
8
  

2
2
7
,6

3
7
,5

6
6
  

6
7
2
,3

7
0
,1

8
4
  

(1
5
3
,1

6
0
) 

6
7
2
,2

1
7
,0

2
4
 

T
ra

n
s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

it
h

 o
w

n
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
  

  
  

 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
  

  
  

 
R
e
a
li
sa

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 s

u
rp

lu
s 

- 
 

(1
,2

9
9
,9

9
8
) 

1
,2

9
9
,9

9
8
  

- 
 

- 
 

- 
C

h
a
n

g
e
s
 i

n
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

  
  

  
 

A
d
ju

st
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

ch
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 N

C
I 

- 
 

 -
  

(9
6
8
,9

3
6
) 

(9
6
8
,9

3
6
) 

9
6
8
,9

3
6
  

- 
A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 o

f 
su

b
si

d
ia

ry
 w

it
h
 N

C
I 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

(3
4
5
,0

0
0
) 

(3
4
5
,0

0
0
)

T
o

ta
l 

tr
a
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

it
h

 o
w

n
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
 

- 
 

(1
,2

9
9
,9

9
8
) 

3
3
1
,0

6
2
  

(9
6
8
,9

3
6
) 

6
2
3
,9

3
6
  

(3
4
5
,0

0
0
)

T
ra

n
s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 d
ir

e
c
tl

y
 i

n
 e

q
u

it
y
  

  
  

 
F
in

a
l 
d
iv

id
e
n
d
s 

fo
r 

2
0
1
4
 

- 
 

- 
 

(1
3
5
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

(1
3
5
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

- 
 

(1
3
5
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
)

T
o

ta
l 

tr
a
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

it
h

 o
w

n
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
 

- 
 

- 
 

(1
3
5
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

(1
3
5
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
) 

- 
 

(1
3
5
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
)

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

t 
3

1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
5

 
4
5
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
  

1
,1

3
6
,3

9
2
,9

3
1
  

7
5
4
,4

4
4
,4

4
9
  

2
,3

4
0
,8

3
7
,3

8
0
  

(2
0
7
,4

2
3
) 

2
,3

4
0
,6

2
9
,9

5
7
 

T
h
e
 a

n
n
e
x
e
d
 n

o
te

s
 1

 t
o
 3

8
 f

o
rm

 a
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

A
C

I
 F

o
rm

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 L

im
it

e
d

C
o

n
s
o

li
d

a
te

d
 s

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 i
n

 e
q

u
it

y

F
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
7

  
F
o
r 

th
e
 s

ix
-m

o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
 e

n
d
e
d
 3

0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6

F
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5



Annual Report 2016-2017 l Page 47

ACI Formulations Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flows

    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from customers  3,514,428,548  4,214,716,720  1,679,655,949  2,535,060,771 

Cash received from other income  4,380,330  8,234,409  2,757,828  5,476,581 

   3,518,808,878  4,222,951,129  1,682,413,777  2,540,537,352 

Cash received/(paid) from/for:

 Purchase of inventory  (2,852,355,646) (3,510,573,096) (1,250,328,244) (2,260,244,852)

 Other receivables  2,989,401  11,576,675  (347,397) 11,924,072 

 Operating expenses  (685,312,792) (624,902,222) (289,828,423) (335,073,799)

 Other payables  (26,099,599) 34,705,469  26,870,289  7,835,180 

 Payment for WPPF  (6,665,352) (33,097,532) (16,860,945) (16,236,587)

 Advances, deposits and prepayments  (8,220,828) (44,629,968) (14,349,589) (30,280,379)

   (3,575,664,816) (4,166,920,674) (1,544,844,309) (2,622,076,365)

Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities  (56,855,938) 56,030,455  137,569,468  (81,539,013)

          

 Interest paid  (93,087,733) (78,608,922) (25,773,670) (52,835,252)

 Income tax paid  (135,464,269) (166,621,116) (69,194,893) (97,426,223)

   (228,552,002) (245,230,038) (94,968,563) (150,261,475)

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (285,407,940) (189,199,583) 42,600,905  (231,800,488)

          

Cash flows from investing activities          

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (110,346,288) (111,790,770) (20,505,250) (91,285,520)

Sale proceed from property, plant and equipment -  1,696,010  169,130  1,526,880 

Investment  (29,913) (617,269) (42,896) (574,373)

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (110,376,201) (110,712,029) (20,379,016) (90,333,013)

          

Cash flows from financing activities

Inter-company debts received/(paid)  (363,119,851) 310,463,447  (90,055,319) 400,518,766 

Proceeds from loans and borrowings  932,813,742  235,964,698    160,723,154  75,241,544 

Dividends paid  (155,122,480) (224,452,532) (90,585,536) (133,866,996)

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities  414,571,411  321,975,613  (19,917,701) 341,893,314 

          

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  18,787,270  22,064,001  2,304,188  19,759,813 

Opening cash and cash equivalents  46,112,097  24,048,096  43,807,909  24,048,096 

Closing cash and cash equivalents as at reporting date  64,899,367  46,112,097  46,112,097  43,807,909 

          

Closing balance represents          

Cash and cash equivalents 15(a) 150,743,214  114,893,750  114,893,750  95,685,266 

Bank overdraft 19 (85,843,847) (68,781,653) (68,781,653) (51,877,357)

   64,899,367  46,112,097  46,112,097  43,807,909 

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1 Reporting entity

1.1 Company profile

ACI Formulations Limited (the "Company") is a company incorporated in Bangladesh. It was 

incorporated as a private limited company on 29 October 1995, was converted to public limited 

company on 4 May 2005 and listed with both Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and Chittagong 

Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) on 30 October 2008. The registered office of the Company is at        

245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208, Bangladesh. The Company went into commercial operations 

on 1 July 1998. Advanced Chemical Industries Limited (ACI Limited) incorporated in Bangladesh is the 

immediate as well as ultimate parent of the Company. The consolidated financial statements of the 

Company as at and for the year ended 30 June 2017 comprise the Company's and its subsidiaries 

(together referred to as the "Group" and individually as "Group entities") interest in controlled entities.

1.2 Nature of business

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and marketing of a number of agrochemical 

and consumer products.        

Agrochemical products (Crop Care & Public Health) are directly marketed by the Company with the 

use of depot facilities of ACI Limited.        

Some products of S. C. Johnson & Son, Inc., are manufactured by the Company under contract which 

is distributed by ACI Limited.       

1.3 Description of subsidiaries

The Company has acquired 98% shares of Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd, Aloe Organics (Pvt.) Limited 

and Green Business & Marketing Company (BD) Limited. The initial effective date of acquisition was 

28 February 2014. Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of herbal 

products in a small scale. On the other hand, the name of Aloe Organics (Pvt.) Ltd. and Green 

Business and Marketing Company (BD) Limited has been "Struck off" from the books of Registrars, of 

Joint Stock Companies & Firms as defunct company through publication of gazette notification dated 

20 April 2017. Accordingly, outstanding balances in the books of accounts of ACI Formulations Limited 

has been written off during the year. 

2 Basis of accounting

2.1 Statement of compliance

The separate financial statements as well as consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with  Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards 

(BFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws 

and regulations.

2.2 Date of authorisation

The separate financial statements as well as consolidated financial statements were authorised by the 

Company's Board of Directors on 23 October 2017 for publication.

2.3 Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical 

cost basis except for certain assets which are stated either at revalued amount or fair market value as 

explained in the accompanying notes.

ACI Formulations Limited

Notes to the financial statements
as at and for the year ended 30 June 2017
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3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT), which is both functional 

and presentation currency of the Group. The amounts in these financial statements have been 

rounded off to the nearest Taka, unless otherwise indicated.

4 Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates 

and assumptions that affect the application of the Group's accounting policies and the reported 

amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to estimates are 

recognised prospectively.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in 

a material adjustment in the year ended 30 June 2017 is included in the following notes:

Note - 8 & 8(a) Property, plant and equipment 

Note - 10 & 10(a) Inventories 

Note - 11 & 11(a) Trade receivables 

Note - 12 Other receivables 

Note - 13 & 13(a) Inter- company receivables 

Note - 17 Employee benefits 

Note - 18 Deferred tax liabilities 

Note - 24 & 24(a) Provision for tax 

Note - 34 Commitment and contingencies 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as far 

as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the 

inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

• Level  1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.      

• Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).      

• Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different 

levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the 

same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 

measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 

period during which the change has occurred.       
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5 Reporting period

The current financial period of the Company covers one year from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017 and 

will be following consistently. However, pursuant to changes in the provision of section 2 (35) of the 

Income Tax Ordinance 1984 following the enactment of Finance Act 2015, the Company had changed 

its reporting period to 1 July to 30 June from 1 January to 31 December in prior period. Accordingly, 

these financial statements cover an eighteen month period from 1 January 2015 to 30 June 2016  for 

comparative figures. As a result, the comparative figures stated in the financial statements and the 

related notes are not entirely comparable.

Financial periods of subsidiaries are:

Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) limited From 1 July to 30 June

Aloe Organics (Pvt.) Ltd. From 1 July to 30 June

Green Business & Marketing Company (BD) Limited From 1 July to 30 June

For the purpose of consolidation, additional financial information for the subsidiaries were prepared as of 

31 December 2015 to enable the Company to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiaries. 

However, the figures involved in the aforesaid subsidiaries companies up to 31 December 2015 from the 

end of their accounting years were insignificant.

6 Significant accounting policies       

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these 

financial statements.       

Set out below is an index of the significant accounting policies, the details of which are available on 

the current and following pages:       

(a) Current versus non-current classification      

(b) Offsetting      

(c) Basis of consolidation      

(d) Revenue       

(e) Foreign currency transactions      

(f) Employee benefits      

(g) Finance income and finance costs      

(h) Income tax      

(i) Investment      

(j) Biological assets      

(k) Inventories       

(l) Property, plant and equipment      

(m) Intangible assets and goodwill      

(n) Financial instruments      

(o) Share capital      

(p) Impairment      

(q) Operating leases      

(r) Provisions      

(s) Going concern      

(t) Contingencies      

(u) Statement of cash flows      

(v) Earnings per share (EPS)      

(w) Events after the reporting period      

(x) Dividends      

(y) Materiality and aggregation       

(z) Standards issued but not yet effective      
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   (a) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-

current classification. An asset is current when it is:       

i) expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or     

ii) due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or     

iii) held primarily for the purpose of trading, or     

iv) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period.     

All other assets are classified as non-current.       

A liability is current when it is:       

i) expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or     

ii) due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or     

iii) held primarily for the purpose of trading, or     

iv) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period.     

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

   (b) Offsetting

The Group reports separately both assets and liabilities, and income and expenses, unless required 

by an applicable accounting standard or offsetting reflects the substance of the transaction and such 

offsetting is permitted by applicable accounting standard.

Cash receipts and payments on behalf of customers when the cash flows reflect the activities of the 

customer rather than those of the entity and cash receipts and payments for items in which the 

turnover is quick, the amounts are large, and the maturities are short are presented net in the 

statement of cash flows.       

   (c) Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries       

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the 

power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its 

activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken 

into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries have been included in the consolidated 

financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that it ceases. The 

accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the 

policies adopted by the Company.

(ii) Non-controlling interests       

Non-controlling interest (NCI) is the equity interest in a subsidiary not attributable to ACI 

Formulations Limited. NCI is measured at subsidiaries' proportionate share of identifiable net 

assets at the date of acquisition.      

(iii) Loss of control       

When the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets (including any 

goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, any related NCI and other components of the equity at 

their carrying amount at the date when control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in 

the profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value  when 

control is lost.
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(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation       

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from 

intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

   (d) Revenue        

i) Sale of goods       

Revenue is recognised when the significant risk and reward of ownership have been transferred 

to the customer, recovery of the consideration is payable, the associated costs and possible 

return of goods can be measured reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with 

the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured net of 

returns, allowances and value added tax. 

ii) Rendering of services       

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in proportion to the stage of completion of the 

transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed based on surveys of work 

performed.

iii) Commissions       

If the Group acts in capacity of an agent rather than as the principal of transaction, then the 

revenue recognised is the net amount of commission made by the Group. 

   (e) Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are prepared in BDT, which is the Company's functional currency. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the books at the exchange rate prevailing on the 

date of such transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the date of financial 

position are translated into BDT at the exchange rate prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items 

that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 

rate at the date of transaction.

   (f) Employee benefits 

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is 

recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive 

obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the 

obligation can be estimated reliably.      

(ii) Defined contribution plans (provident fund)       

The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme where employees contribute 10% of 

their basic salary with equal contribution by the Company. The provident fund is being 

considered as defined contribution plan being managed by a Board of Trustees.

The Company recognises contribution to defined contribution plan as an expense when an employee 

has rendered related services in exchange for such contribution. Prepaid contributions are recognised 

as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(iii) Defined benefit plans (gratuity)       

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, provision in respect of which is made 

annually covering all its permanent eligible employees. The Employees' Gratuity Fund of the 

Company is being considered as defined benefit plan.

Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which amounts to be paid as 

retirement benefits are determined by reference to employees' earnings and/or year of services.
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The rate used to discount post employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to the 

rate stated in the actuarial report. Actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme has been made in 2015 

to assess the adequacy of the liabilities provided for the schemes.

(iv) Workers' profit participation fund (WPPF)

The Company operates funds for workers as 'Workers' Profit Participation Fund' and 5% of the 

profit before charging such expense have been transferred to this fund as per section 234 of the 

Labour Act 2006 (amended in 2013).

   (g) Finance income and finance costs

The Group's finance income and finance costs include:

• interest income;

• interest expense;

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. 

   (h) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the 

extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in OCI (Other Comprehensive Income).

(i)   Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for 

the year and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The 

amount of current tax payable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid that 

reflects uncertainty related to income tax, if any. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only 

if certain criteria are met. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 

reporting date. The applicable tax rates for the Company is currently 25%.

(ii)  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 

purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:      

-  temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is 

not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. 

-  taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

-  temporary difference related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able to 

control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible 

temporary differences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 

which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to 

the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions 

are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improve.

   (i) Investment        

In separate financial statements of the Company, investment in subsidiaries has been carried at cost 

as per BAS 27: Separate Financial Statements.       

Investments in subsidiaries- Investment in subsidiaries has been accounted for as per BFRS 10: 

Consolidated Financial Statements. The investment is eliminated in full against the equity of acquired 

subsidiary, which is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition as per BFRS 3: Business Combinations.

   (j) Biological assets        

Biological assets are measured fair value less costs to sell, with any changes therein recognised in 

profit or loss.
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   (k) Inventories         

Inventories except materials in transit are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The 

cost of inventories is based on the weighted average method, and includes expenditure incurred in 

acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to 

their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, 

cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operation capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 

estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Material in transit represents the cost incurred up to the date of the statement of financial position for 

the items that were not received till to the date of the statement of financial position. Inventory 

losses and abnormal losses are recognised as expenses.

   (l) Property, plant and equipment        

(i) Recognition and measurement       

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or revaluation less accumulated 

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The items of  property, plant and 

equipment were revalued in the year 2004, 2010 and 2015 by the firm of professional values on 

the basis of applicable methods including market value method, premise  on the accompanying 

narrative information and valuation methodology. Capital work-in-progress represents the cost  

incurred for acquisition and/or construction of items of property, plant and equipment that were 

not ready for use at the end of 30 June 2017 and these are stated at cost.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of asset. The cost of self 

constructed asset includes the cost of material and direct labour, any other costs directly 

attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use.

(ii) Subsequent costs       

The cost of replacement or upgradation of an item of property, plant and equipment is 

recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 

embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured  reliably. All other 

repair and maintenance expense are charged to income statement as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation        

All items of property, plant and equipment have been depreciated on straight line basis over the 

estimated useful life of each item of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation on additions is 

charged at 50% of normal rates in the year of acquisition and no depreciation is charged in the 

year of disposal. Depreciation is charged at the rates varying from 2.5% to 20% depending on 

the estimated useful lives of assets. No depreciation is charged for land and capital work in 

progress, as land has unlimited useful life and CWIP has not yet been placed in service.

The revalued items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated based on their revalued 

amount at the date of revaluation over their remaining estimated useful lives.
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  The estimated useful lives of initially recognised property, plant and equipment are as follows:               

 In Year 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Building 40 40 40 

 Plant and machinery 10 10 10 

 Equipment and machinery 5-10 5-10 5-10 

 Electrical and other office appliances 5-10 5-10 5-10 

 Furniture and fixture 10 10 10 

 Motor vehicles 5 5 5

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and 

adjusted if appropriate. No revision in respect of items of property, plant and equipment was 

done during this period.      

(iv) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 

qualifying asset are included in the cost of that asset as per BAS 23: Borrowing cost. The 

capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs of Group's borrowings for this 

purpose and the capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the asset is ready for 

intended use.       

(v) Impairment

The carrying amount of the non- financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets 

(considered as disclosed separately under respective accounting standards), are reviewed at 

each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 

indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.      

However, no such conditions that might be suggestive of a heightened risk of impairment of 

assets existed at the reporting date.

(vi) Retirement and disposals

An asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its 

use and subsequent disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an asset 

is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 

the asset and is recognised as gain or loss from disposal of asset in profit or loss. When revalued 

assets are disposed of, the amounts included in the revaluation surplus are transferred to 

retained earnings.       

   (m) Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured  at cost less accumulated impairment 

losses.
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   (n) Financial instruments        

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise of investments in shares and term deposit, trade 

receivable, inter-company receivable, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, inter-

company payables, other payables, bank overdraft, share capital and interest - bearing borrowings.

(i) Financial assets       

The Group initially recognises receivables and deposits issued on the date when they are 

originated. All other financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, when the entity 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 

which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 

transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of 

ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.

The Group's financial assets comprise trade receivable, intercompany receivable, other 

receivables, refundable deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

Trade, inter-company and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoiced amount. Receivables are stated 

at net off provision for doubtful debts. Provision is made in these accompanying financial 

statements complying the Group's policy and receivables are written off when the debts became 

finally irrecoverable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and all call deposits with original maturities 

of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part 

of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for 

the purpose only of the statement of cash flows.

Investment in term deposit

The Group has the positive intent and ability to hold term deposit to maturity, and as such 

financial assets are classified as held to maturity. Held to maturity financial assets are recognised 

at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost.

(ii) Financial Liabilities       

The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on the transaction date at which the Group 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the liability.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 

cancelled, or expired.

The Group's financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, bank overdraft, share capital 

and interest - bearing borrowings.

The Group recognises such financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past 

events are certain and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity 

of resources embodying economic benefits.
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(iii) Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement 

of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the 

amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 

liability simultaneously.

   (o) Share capital        

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are 

recognised as a deduction from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity 

transaction are accounted for in accordance with BAS 12: Income Taxes.

   (p) Impairment        

(i) Financial assets       

Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective 

evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

- default or delinquency by a debtor;     

-  restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider 

otherwise;     

- indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;     

- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers; or     

- the disappearance of an active market of a security because of financial difficulties; or     

-  observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in expected cash flows from 

a group of financial assets.     

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

The Group considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a 

collective level. All individually significant assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those 

found not to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been 

incurred but not yet individually identified. Assets that are not individually significant are 

collectively assessed for impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together 

assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical information on the timing of 

recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic and 

credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested 

by historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the 

present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective 

interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When 

the Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant 

amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the 

decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, 

then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
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(ii) Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other 

than biological costs, inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any 

indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 

estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 

generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of 

other assets or CGUs (Cash Generating Units).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 

less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their 

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 

value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU 

exceeds its recoverable amount.

   (q) Operating leases 

All leases other than those which meet the definition of finance lease are treated as operating lease 

and are not recognised in the statement of financial position. Payments made under operating leases 

are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight line basis 

over the term of the lease.

   (r) Provisions 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive 

obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 

be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the 

current best estimate. If it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits are 

required to settle the obligation, the provision are reversed.

   (s) Going concern 

The Group has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason 

the management continue to adopt going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. The 

current resources of the Company provide sufficient fund to meet the present requirements of its 

existing business.

   (t) Contingencies 

(i) Contingent liability       

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will 

be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the entity; or a present obligation that arises from past events 

but in not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation 

cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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The Group discloses contingent liability in the financial statements. A provision is recognised in 

the period in which the recognition criteria of provision is met.

(ii) Contingent asset 

Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 

wholly within the control of the entity.

The Group does not recognise contingent asset. Only when the realisation of the related 

economic benefits are visually certain should recognition take place provided that it can be 

measured reliably because, at that point, the asset is no longer contingent.

   (u) Statement of cash flows        

Cash flows from operating activities are presented under direct method as per BAS 7: Statement of 

cash flows.

   (v) Earnings per share (EPS)

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by 

dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company / Group by the 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.        

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders 

and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 

potential ordinary shares, if any. However, dilution of EPS is not applicable for these financial 

statements as there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the year ended 30 June 2017.

   (w) Events after the reporting period        

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Group's position at the 

reporting date or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in 

the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed 

in the notes when material.

   (x) Dividends 

Final dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the financial 

statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group's shareholders at the 

Annual General meeting, while interim dividend distributions are recognised in the period in which the 

dividends are declared and paid.

   (y) Materiality and aggregation         

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of 

dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.
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   (z) Standards issued but not yet effective        

The Group has consistently applied the accounting policies as set out in Note 6 to all periods 

presented in these financial statements. The various amendments to standards, including any 

consequential amendments to other standards, with the date of initial application of 1 July 2016 have 

been considered. However, these amendments have no material impact on the financial statements of 

the Group.

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning 

after 1 January 2019 and earlier application is permitted. However, the Group has not early applied 

the following new standards in preparing these financial statements.

(i) BFRS 9 Financial Instruments       

BFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaces the existing guidance in BAS 39 Financial Instruments: 

Recognition and Measurement. BFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and 

measurement of the financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating 

impairment of financial assets, and the new general hedge accounting requirements. It also 

carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from BAS 

39. BFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with 

early adoption permitted. The Group is yet to assess the potential impact of BFRS 9 on its 

financial statements.

(ii) BFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers       

BFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when 

revenue is recognised. It replaces existing recognition guidance, including BAS 18 Revenue, BAS 

11 Construction Contracts and BFRI 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes. BFRS 15 is effective for 

annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted. 

The Group is yet to assess the potential impact of BFRS 15 on its financial statements.

(iii) BFRS 16 Leases

BFRS 16 eliminates the current operating/financing lease dual accounting model for leases. 

Instead, there is a single, on-balance sheet accounting model, similar to current finance lease 

accounting. Issued in January 2016, the new BFRS will replace the existing guidance in BAS 17 

Leases. BFRS 16 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 

Early adoption is permitted if BFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is also adopted. 

The Group is yet to assess the potential impact of BFRS 16 on its financial statements.

7 Operating segments        

   (i) Basis for segmentation        

The Group has the following three strategic business units, which are reportable segments. These 

business units offer different products and services, and are managed separately because they 

require different technology and marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the 

Group's CEO reviews internal management reports at least on quarterly basis.

Reportable segments  Operations 

Crop Care and Public Health (CC & PH) To manufacture and sell crop care and public health 

products

Mosquito coil (M. Coil) To manufacture and sell mosquito coil products

Aerosol To manufacture and sell aerosol and air freshener 

products
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(ii) Information about reportable segments  

Information related to each reportable segment is set out below. Segment profit/(loss) before tax is used to 

measure performance because management believes that this information is the most relevant in evaluating 

the results of the respective segments relative to other entities that operate in the same industries.

30 June 2017

          Reportable segments
               Total reportable 
 In Taka  CC & PH M Coil Aerosol segments Unallocated Total

External revenue 2,246,950,903  524,068,918  609,912,662  3,380,932,483  282,081,090  3,663,013,573 

Intra-segment revenue -  -  -  -     -  - 

Segment revenue 2,246,950,903  524,068,918  609,912,662  3,380,932,483  282,081,090  3,663,013,573 

Cost of sales excluding depreciation (1,232,312,497) (479,846,611) (569,059,507) (2,281,218,615) (226,713,714) (2,507,932,329)

Depreciation (28,888,650) (19,572,336) (4,464,268) (52,925,254) (4,807,286) (57,732,540)

Other income 3,302,997  203,964  180,385  3,687,346  692,984  4,380,330 

Operating expenses excluding depreciation (509,500,476) (9,235,459) (9,564,962) (528,300,897) (77,388,231) (605,689,128)

Finance costs (108,720,621) -  -  (108,720,621) (9,899,089) (118,619,710)

Segment profit/(loss) before tax 352,290,073  14,837,552  25,654,095  392,781,720  (34,136,543) 358,645,179         

Segment assets 2,794,009,021  837,670,307  508,122,761  4,139,802,089  963,229,120  5,103,031,209 

Segment liabilities 796,570,879  134,139,448  247,500,013  1,178,210,340  1,479,345,796  2,657,556,136 

30 June 2016

          Reportable segments
               Total reportable 
 In Taka  CC & PH M Coil Aerosol segments Unallocated Total

External revenue 1,025,062,099  239,944,548  309,419,470  1,574,426,117  51,088,041  1,625,514,158 

Intra-segment revenue 2,897,500  -  -  2,897,500  -  2,897,500 

Segment revenue 1,027,959,599  239,944,548  309,419,470  1,577,323,617  51,088,041  1,628,411,658 

Cost of sales excluding depreciation (574,886,512) (219,722,509) (289,773,481) (1,084,382,501) (46,148,080) (1,130,530,581)

Depreciation (13,074,293) (8,957,087) (2,200,258) (24,231,638) (1,604,504) (25,836,142)

Other income 2,611,166  -  154,660  2,765,826  -  2,765,826 

Operating expenses excluding depreciation (288,056,368) (3,531,757) (3,313,086) (294,901,211) (18,858,798) (313,760,009)

Finance costs (27,587,342) -   -  (27,587,342) (1,318,689) (28,906,031)

Segment profit/(loss) before tax 120,617,938  7,346,536  13,572,940  141,537,414  (16,385,144) 125,152,270         

Segment assets 2,544,784,225  734,462,772  469,706,541  3,748,953,538  724,592,196  4,473,545,734 

Segment liabilities 1,216,883,004  127,823,785  203,929,876  1,548,636,665  652,592,638  2,201,229,303 

31 December 2015

          Reportable segments
               Total reportable 
 In Taka  CC & PH M Coil Aerosol segments Unallocated Total

External revenue 1,919,092,766  328,119,416  320,065,042  2,567,277,224  39,756,419  2,607,033,643 

Intra-segment revenue 13,936,000  205,872,583  160,114,883  379,923,466  24,616,795  404,540,261 

Segment revenue 1,933,028,766  533,991,999  480,179,925  2,947,200,690  64,373,214  3,011,573,904 

Cost of sales excluding depreciation (1,180,864,885) (480,917,277) (446,962,412) (2,108,744,574) (59,092,564) (2,167,837,138)

Depreciation (24,909,526) (20,324,224) (5,027,797) (50,261,547) (593,999) (50,855,546)

Other income 5,448,368  5,000  1,550,093  7,003,461  (1,450,859) 5,552,602 

Operating expenses excluding depreciation (372,235,879) (8,605,658) (9,037,170) (389,878,707) (32,348,363) (422,227,070)

Finance costs (46,467,568) (1,156,429) (541,403) (48,165,400) (6,157,072) (54,322,472)

Segment profit/(loss) before tax 298,299,312  21,843,740  19,153,174  339,296,227  (33,891,377) 305,404,850         

Segment assets 2,437,600,318  771,461,522  455,986,397  3,665,048,237  678,895,107  4,343,943,344 

Segment liabilities 1,263,703,958  192,274,681  199,554,710  1,655,533,349  347,780,038  2,003,313,387 
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9 Investments

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Investment in subsidiaries 9.1 3,948,334  11,845,000  11,845,000 

 Investment in FDR 9.2 3,043,953  3,014,040  2,971,144 

 Investment in shares of ACI Motors Limited  75,000  75,000  75,000 

   7,067,287  14,934,040  14,891,144 

9.1 Investment in subsidiaries

                         30 June 2017   30 June 2016 31 December 2015

    Face value Called and
   Number of per paid up Share-
   shares share capital per share holding Value Value Value 

    Taka Taka % Taka Taka Taka 

 Name of subsidiaries

 Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd 4,900 100 100 98  3,948,334  3,948,334  3,948,334 

 Aloe Organics (Pvt.) Limited -  -  -  -  -  3,948,333  3,948,333 

 Green Business & Marketing-Company (BD) Limited -  -  -  -  -  3,948,333  3,948,333 

 Total investment in subsidiaries     3,948,334  11,845,000  11,845,000 

9.2  Investment in FDR includes amount of Taka 2,022,500 which is kept as lien against service received from Titas 

Gas Transmission and Distribution Co. Limited. Therefore, the Company has no intention to encash the said 

amount and recorded such amount as long term investment.

9(a) Consolidated investments

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Investment in FDR  3,043,953  3,014,040  2,971,144 

 Investment in shares of ACI Motors Limited  75,000  75,000  75,000 

   3,118,953  3,089,040  3,046,144 

10 Inventories

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Raw and packing materials  647,622,210  499,008,577  454,030,691 

 Work in process  738,855   -  971,725 

 Finished goods  660,208,455  461,350,389  344,649,119 

 Goods in transit  63,020,190  23,719,921  86,163,250 

 Other inventories (engineering stores and diesel) 26,511,825  24,485,998  25,235,491 

 Allowance for slow-moving inventory  (13,676,972) (13,676,645) (13,308,195)

   1,384,424,562  994,888,240  897,742,081 

In view of innumerable items of inventories and diversified quantities, inventories are presented group-wise.
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10(a) Consolidated inventories

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Raw and packing materials  659,313,231  508,198,040  455,938,471 

 Work in process  738,855  -  971,725 

 Finished goods  661,199,925  461,723,831  345,090,614 

 Goods in transit  63,179,729  23,848,027  86,163,250 

 Other inventories (engineering stores and diesel) 26,511,825  24,485,998  25,235,491 

 Allowance for slow-moving inventory  (13,744,773) (13,744,446) (14,033,194)

   1,397,198,792  1,004,511,450  899,366,357 

11 Trade receivables

    30 June 2017  30 June 2016 31 December 2015

   Dues over Dues below

 In Taka 6 months 6 months Total Total Total 

 Other than related parties 440,608,044  1,023,083,530  1,463,691,574  1,340,347,038  1,393,000,140 

     1,463,691,574  1,340,347,038  1,393,000,140 

 Less: Allowance for doubtful debts   (136,971,225) (152,357,003) (129,790,356)

     1,326,720,349  1,187,990,035  1,263,209,784

In view of innumerable number of debtors, it is not practicable to disclose the amount receivable against each 

specific debtors.

11(a) Consolidated trade receivables

    30 June 2017  30 June 2016 31 December 2015

   Dues over Dues below

 In Taka 6 months 6 months Total Total Total 

 Other than related parties 440,608,044  1,035,753,373  1,476,361,417  1,343,162,169  1,394,417,134 

     1,476,361,417  1,343,162,169  1,394,417,134 

 Less: Allowance for doubtful debts   (136,971,225) (152,357,003) (129,790,356)

     1,339,390,192  1,190,805,166  1,264,626,778 

12 Other receivables

Other receivable represents receivable on accounts of promotional expense to be reimbursed by Akzonobel 

and interest income from FDR.

13 Inter-company receivables

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 ACI Pure Flour Limited  -  212,659   - 

 Neem Laboratories Pvt. Ltd  39,933,951  23,344,158  21,201,708 

   39,933,951  23,556,817  21,201,708 

This arises due to working capital financing with ACI Pure Flour Limited and Neem Laboratories Pvt. Ltd.
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13(a) Consolidated inter- company receivables  

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 ACI Pure Flour Limited  -  212,659  - 

   -  212,659  - 

14 Advances, deposits and prepayments  

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Advances:

 Staff  3,202,997  2,331,890  1,937,506 

 Suppliers & others  39,040,552  33,199,988  42,481,808 

 VAT current account  8,826,787  8,867,681  8,092,250 

 Advance income tax 14.1 283,434,505  281,452,076  212,257,183 

   334,504,840  325,851,635  264,768,747 

 Deposits:

 Security deposits  12,407,921  8,191,810  7,489,810 

 Bank guarantee margin  50,777,412  51,728,412  35,659,041 

   63,185,333  59,920,222  43,148,851 

 Prepayments:

 Prepaid expenses  2,286,628  4,532,438  1,809,417 

   2,286,628  4,532,438  1,809,417 

 Balance at reporting date  399,976,801  390,304,295  309,727,015 

14.1 Advance income tax

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Opening balance  281,452,076  212,257,183  114,830,960 

 Additions  134,944,391  69,194,893  97,426,223 

 Adjustments  (132,961,962) -  - 

 Balance at reporting date  283,434,505  281,452,076  212,257,183 

14(a) Consolidated advances, deposits and prepayments:

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Advances:

 Staff  3,202,997  2,331,890  2,075,146 

 Suppliers and others  39,738,445  33,633,488  42,969,888 

 VAT current account  10,400,654  8,867,681  8,092,250 

 Advance income tax  284,258,747  281,756,440  212,274,061 

   337,600,842  326,589,499  265,411,345 

 Deposits:

 Security deposits  12,407,921  8,191,810  7,489,810 

 Bank guarantee margin  50,777,412  51,728,412  35,659,041 

   63,185,333  59,920,222  43,148,851 

 Prepayments:

 Prepaid expenses  3,937,242  8,048,353  2,504,204 

   3,937,242  8,048,353  2,504,204 

 Balance at reporting date  404,723,417  394,558,075  311,064,400 
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15 Cash and cash equivalents

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Cash in hand  4,046,750  2,470,000  2,350,000 

 Collection in hand 15.1 61,438,596  52,864,016  44,537,259 

 Bank balances 15.2 72,869,278  57,177,692  45,886,626 

   138,354,624  112,511,708  92,773,885 

15.1 This represents cash in hand at depots which was collected against cash sales and payment instruments 

collected against credit sale at the end of the reporting period.

15.2 Bank balances

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Standard Chartered Bank  12,096,940  1,856,451  6,872,968 

 The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC) 9,178,959  11,362,461  7,193,393 

 AB Bank Limited  32,122,887  18,546,255  13,362,934 

 Agrani Bank Limited  1,975,013  2,360,730  3,212,620 

 Janata Bank Limited  4,071,198  4,072,604  4,129,545 

 Sonali Bank Limited  5,848,169  3,902,958  186,545 

 Bank Asia Limited  3,365  4,090  22,375 

 BRAC Bank Limited  3,210,311  2,213,175  544,516 

 ONE Bank Limited  989,427  2,869,175  941,504 

 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC  3,255,319  9,910,534  8,584,464 

 The City Bank Limited  101,274  79,259  835,762 

 Pubali Bank Limited  16,416  -  - 

   72,869,278  57,177,692  45,886,626 

15(a) Consolidated cash and cash equivalents  

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Cash in hand  4,132,655  2,566,774  2,446,774 

 Collection in hand  61,438,596  52,864,016  44,537,259 

 Bank balances 15.2(a) 85,171,963  59,462,960  48,701,233 

   150,743,214  114,893,750  95,685,266 

15.2(a) Consolidated bank balances

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Standard Chartered Bank  12,096,940  1,856,451  6,872,968 

 HSBC  9,178,959  11,362,461  7,193,393 

 AB Bank Limited  32,122,887  18,546,255  13,362,934 

 Agrani Bank Limited  1,975,013  2,360,730  3,212,620 

 Janata Bank Limited  4,071,198  4,072,604  4,129,545 

 Sonali Bank Limited  5,848,169  3,902,958  186,545 

 Bank Asia Limited  3,365  4,090  22,375 

 BRAC Bank Limited  3,210,311  2,213,175  544,516 

 ONE Bank Limited  989,427  2,869,175  941,504 

 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC  3,255,319  9,910,534  8,584,464 

 Dutch Bangla Bank Limited  12,302,685  2,285,268  2,814,607 

 The City Bank Limited  101,274  79,259  835,762 

 Pubali Bank Limited  16,416  -  - 

   85,171,963  59,462,960  48,701,233 
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16 Share capital

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Ordinary shares (6,600,000 shares of Tk 10 each) 66,000,000  66,000,000  66,000,000 
 Bonus shares (32,500,000 shares of Tk 10 each) 325,000,000  325,000,000  325,000,000 
 Right shares (5,900,000 shares of Tk 10 each) 59,000,000  59,000,000  59,000,000 
 In issue at reporting date - fully paid  450,000,000  450,000,000  450,000,000 

 Authorised - par value Tk 10  500,000,000  500,000,000  500,000,000 

16.1 Shareholding position 

 30 June 2017

   Number of Percentage of  Value
 Nature of Shareholders  share holding (Taka) 

 Directors and sponsors  29,708,205  66.02%  297,082,050 
 Institutions  9,457,564  21.02%  94,575,640 
 General shareholders  5,834,231  12.96%  58,342,310 

   45,000,000  100.00%  450,000,000.

 30 June 2016

   Number of Percentage of  Value
 Nature of Shareholders  share holding (Taka) 

 Directors and sponsors  29,708,205  66.02% 297,082,050 
 Institutions  7,290,175  16.20%  72,901,750 
 General shareholders  8,001,620  17.78%  80,016,200 

   45,000,000  100.00%  450,000,000 

 31 December 2015

   Number of Percentage of  Value
 Nature of Shareholders  share holding (Taka) 

 Directors and sponsors  29,708,205  66.02%  297,082,050 
 Institutions  8,277,083  18.39%  82,770,830 
 General shareholders   7,014,712  15.59%  70,147,120 

   45,000,000  100.00%  450,000,000 

16.2 Share owning schedule 

 30 June 2017

   Number of Number Percentage
 Shareholding  shareholder of share of holding

 Less than 500  3,523 435,285 0.97%
 501 to 5000 shares  1,280 2,176,057 4.84%
 5001 to 10,000 shares  121 884,196 1.96%
 10,001 to 20,000 shares  68 981,204 2.18%
 20,001 to 30,000 shares  26 641,638 1.43%
 30,001 to 40,000 shares  8 267,156 0.59%
 40,001 to 50,000 shares  10 449,718 1.00%
 50,001 to 100,000 shares  17 1,287,086 2.86%
 100,001 to 1,000,000 shares  9 1,535,959 3.41%
 Over 1,000,000 shares  5 36,341,701 80.76%

   5,067 45,000,000 100.00%

       30 June 2016   31 December 2015

   Number of Number Percentage Number of Number Percentage
 Shareholding shareholder of share of holding shareholder of share of holding 
 Less than 500 3,695 634,579 1.41% 3,679 586,649 1.30%
 501 to 5000 shares 1,753 2,741,543 6.09% 1,620 2,213,450 4.92%
 5001 to 10,000 shares 139 1,009,529 2.24% 99 728,838 1.62%
 10,001 to 20,000 shares 80 1,162,388 2.58% 70 1,041,801 2.32%
 20,001 to 30,000 shares 33 828,138 1.84% 31 756,991 1.68%
 30,001 to 40,000 shares 16 560,349 1.25% 10 344,761 0.77%
 40,001 to 50,000 shares 9 421,162 0.94% 9 409,871 0.90%
 50,001 to 100,000 shares 20 1,351,718 3.00% 15 997,783 2.22%
 100,001 to 1,000,000 shares 15 3,697,783 8.22% 16 4,895,224 10.88%
 Over 1,000,000 shares 5 32,592,811 72.43% 5 33,024,632 73.39%

  5,765  45,000,000 100.00% 5,554 45,000,000 100.00%
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17 Employee benefits

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Net defined benefit obligation 17.1  25,100,219  23,811,703  11,304,565 

 Other employee benefits  5,459,911  5,459,911  4,559,911 

   30,560,130  29,271,614  15,864,476 

17.1 Net defined benefit obligation 

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Opening balance  23,811,703  11,304,565  8,715,238 

 Service cost  1,830,259  15,243,042  5,261,413 

 Benefits paid  (541,743) (2,735,904) (2,672,086)

 Closing balance  25,100,219  23,811,703  11,304,565 

18 Deferred tax liabilities

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Opening balance  47,650,008  61,269,695  47,753,650 

 Deferred tax income/(expense) for the year 30 (4,139,485) 13,619,687  1,160,162 

 Deferred tax before revaluation at reporting date 18.1 51,789,493  47,650,008  46,593,488 

 Deferred tax on revaluation surplus  -  -  14,676,207 

 Closing balance  51,789,493  47,650,008  61,269,695 

18.1 Deferred tax before revaluation at reporting date 

   Carrying    Taxable/(deductible)
   amount on  temporary
 In Taka  reporting date  Tax base difference

 At 30 June 2017

 Land 1,317,319,744  -  1,317,319,744 

 Property, plant and equipment (other than land) 458,715,500  233,887,481  224,828,020 

 Allowance for slow-moving inventory 13,676,972  -  (13,676,972)

 Allowance for doubtful debts 136,971,225  -  (136,971,225)

 Net defined benefit obligation 25,100,219  -  (25,100,219)

 Taxable/(deductible) temporary differences 1,951,783,660  233,887,481  1,366,399,348 
            

 Applicable tax rate for land   3%

 Applicable tax rate for other than land   25%

 Deferred tax liabilities   51,789,493 
          

 At 30 June 2016 

 Land 1,296,278,980  -  1,296,278,980 

 Property, plant and equipment (other than land) 440,020,487  215,128,581  224,891,906 

 Allowance for slow-moving inventory 13,676,646  -  (13,676,646)

 Allowance for doubtful debts 152,357,003  -  (152,357,003)

 Net defined benefit obligation 23,811,703  -  (23,811,703)

 Taxable/(deductible) temporary differences 1,926,144,819  215,128,581  1,331,325,534 
            

 Applicable tax rate for land   3%

 Applicable tax rate for other than land   25%

 Deferred tax liabilities   47,650,008 

 At 31 December 2015

 Land 1,294,904,904  -  1,294,904,904 

 Property, plant and equipment (other than land) 422,159,699  178,007,297  244,152,402 

 Allowance for slow-moving inventory 13,308,195  -  (13,308,195)

 Allowance for doubtful debts 129,790,356  -  (129,790,356)

 Defined benefit liability 11,304,565  -  (11,304,565)

 Taxable/(deductible) temporary differences 1,871,467,719  178,007,297  1,384,654,190 
            

 Applicable tax rate for land   3%

 Applicable tax rate for other than land   25%

 Deferred tax liabilities   61,269,695 
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19 Bank overdrafts

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Standard Chartered Bank 19.1 12,767,150  49,019,150  39,715,786 

 HSBC 19.1 523,112  7,624,239  4,895,802 

 Prime Bank Limited 19.1 67,430,144  -  - 

 BRAC Bank Limited 19.1 1,950,114  7,767,471  3,758,216 

 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 19.1 3,173,327  4,370,793  3,507,553 

   85,843,847  68,781,653  51,877,357 

19.1 Terms and repayment schedule

 The terms and conditions of outstanding overdraft are as follows:

                             30 June 2017                       30 June 2016     31 December 2015

    Year of Loan Loan Loan Loan Loan

 In Taka Currency maturity limit outstanding limit outstanding  outstanding 

 Standard Chartered Bank BDT 2017 10,000,000  12,767,150  10,000,000  49,019,150  39,715,786 

 HSBC BDT 2017 10,000,000  523,112  10,000,000  7,624,239  4,895,802 

 Prime Bank Limited BDT 2017 100,000,000  67,430,144  -  -  - 

 BRAC Bank Limited BDT 2017 10,000,000  1,950,114  10,000,000  7,767,471  3,758,216 

 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC BDT 2017 20,000,000  3,173,327  20,000,000  4,370,793  3,507,553 

     150,000,000  85,843,847  50,000,000  68,781,653  51,877,357 

The Company is enjoying overdraft facilities from the banks for the purpose of meeting working capital 

requirements which is to be repaid to the banks on demand.

20 Loans and borrowings

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Standard Chartered Bank 20.1 153,883,858  53,947,110  108,155,878 

 HSBC 20.1 163,869,350  110,754,504  254,466,469 

 BRAC Bank Limited 20.1 109,141,014  505,103,467  58,082,134 

 The City Bank Limited 20.1 500,000,000  -  - 

 Prime Bank Limited 20.1 554,523,595  -  - 

 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 20.1 394,457,589  274,432,108  367,123,178 

   1,875,875,406  944,237,189  787,827,659 

20(a) Cosolidated Loans and borrowings

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Standard Chartered Bank 20.1 153,883,858  53,947,110  108,155,878 

 HSBC 20.1 163,869,350  110,754,504  254,466,469 

 BRAC Bank Limited 20.1 109,141,014  505,103,467  58,082,134 

 The City Bank Limited 20.1 500,000,000  -  - 

 Prime Bank Limited 20.1 554,523,595  -  - 

 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 20.1 394,457,589  274,432,108  367,123,178 

 Dutch Bangla Bank Limited  5,489,148  4,313,623  -  

   1,881,364,554  948,550,813  787,827,659 

20.1 Terms and repayment schedule

 The terms and conditions of combined outstanding loans are as follows:

                             30 June 2017                       30 June 2016     31 December 2015

    Year of Loan Loan Loan Loan Loan Loan

 In Taka Note Currency maturity limit outstanding limit outstanding  outstanding 

 Standard Chartered Bank 20.1.1 BDT 2017 510,000,000 153,883,858  510,000,000  53,947,110  108,155,878 

 HSBC 20.1.2 BDT 2017 250,000,000 163,869,350  250,000,000  110,754,504  254,466,469 

 BRAC Bank Limited 20.1.3 BDT 2017 750,000,000 109,141,014  290,000,000  505,103,467  58,082,134 

 The City Bank Limited 20.1.4 BDT 2017 500,000,000 500,000,000  -  -  - 

 Prime Bank Limited 20.1.5 BDT 2017 1,000,000,000 554,523,595  -  -  - 

 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 20.1.6 BDT 2017 400,000,000 394,457,589  400,000,000  274,432,108  367,123,178 

      3,410,000,000 1,875,875,406  1,450,000,000  944,237,189  787,827,659 
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20.1.1 Standard Chartered Bank 

The Company is enjoying trade finance facility under general banking facilities from Standard Chartered 

Bank (SCB) under the following terms and conditions against the facility offer letter dated 19 October 2016 

and subsequent updates:            

20.1.1.1 Letter of Credit (L/C secured)/Loan Against Trust Receipt (LATR)      

Amount  : Tk 510,000,000

Purpose  : To retire the documents under letters of credit issued by the Standard Chartered Bank.

Tenure  : 360 days.

Payment : On maturity, each trust receipt outstanding will be adjusted by debiting Company's bank 

account and quarterly interest will be charged into the same account.

20.1.1.2 Acceptance

Amount : Tk 510,000,000 (Inner limit of limit 20.1.1.1 above).

Purpose : To provide acceptance against usance or deferred/usance L/C issued. Acceptance can be 

utilised for machinery L/C as well.

Tenure : 360 days.     

20.1.1.3 Import invoice financing

Amount : Tk 150,000,000 (Inner limit of limit 20.1.1.1 above).

Purpose : To finance 100% local procurement of raw materials.

Tenure : 120 days.     

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

20.1.1.4 Import loan

Amount : Tk 50,000,000 (Inner limit of limit 20.1.1.1 above).

Purpose : For granting import loan to meet drawing under machinery and spare parts.

Tenure : 360 days.      

Payment : 12 equal monthly instalments.

20.1.1.5 Short term loan

Amount : Tk 250,000,000 (Inner limit of limit 20.1.1.1 above).

Purpose : For granting payment of procurement of local raw materials and payment for duty and tax 

of imported raw materials.

Tenure : 120 days.         

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

20.1.1.6 Bond & Guarantees 

Amount : Tk 20,000,000 (Inner limit of limit 20.1.1.1 above).

Purpose : Issuance of guarantees on behalf of the company.

Tenure : 365 days.

20.1.1.7 Securities against the facilities

Securities against the facilities mentioned under notes 19 and 20.1.1 are as follows:

-  Demand promissory note and letter of continuation for Tk 520,000,000 each.

-  Registered hypothecation over stock and book debts of the Company on pari-pasu basis for        

Tk 520,000,000.

-  First charge by way of registered mortgage over the tangible assets of the Company both existing 

and future where Standard  Chartered Bank's share will not be less than Tk 140,000,000.

-  Corporate guarantee from Advanced Chemical Industries Limited supported by board resolution.
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20.1.2 The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

The Company is enjoying following facilities from HSBC under the following terms and conditions 

against the facility offer letter dated 25 April 2017 and subsequent updates:

20.1.2.1 Combined limit/ import line/ import cash limit   

Amount   : Tk 250,000,000

Purpose  :  To retire sight import documents and to make duty/VAT payments by creating import loan and 

usance import documents against the Company's acceptance and issue shipping guarantee. To 

finance imported raw materials/spares/small machinery on sight and/or deferred basis.

Tenure : 180 days for imports (loan) and deferred payment bills and 30 days for shipping guarantee.

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

20.1.2.2 Guarantee

Amount : Tk 30,000,000

Purpose : To issue guarantees favoring various Government Bodies and utility companies etc. required 

in the normal course of business.

Tenure : 1 year/ 5 years for utility companies.        

20.1.2.3 Securities against the facilities

Securities against the facilities mentioned under notes 19 and 20.1.2 are as follows:

-  Demand promissory note of Tk 597,549,000 with letter of revival and continuity.

-  Letter of Set Off to set off between different accounts maintained with the bank.

-  Corporate guarantee to be executed by Advanced Chemical Industries Limited for Tk 430,000,000 

supported by Advance Chemical  Industries Limited Board Resolution for credit facilities granted 

to ACI Formulations Limited. 

-  First pari-pasu charge with other lenders over the Company's stock of raw materials, work-in-

progress and finished goods for Tk 430,000,000 registered with the Registrar of Joint Stock 

Companies and Firms (RJSC).

-  First pari-pasu charge with other lenders over the Company's book debts/receivables for Tk 

430,000,000 registered with the Registrar  of Joint Stock Companies (RJSC) on pari-pasu basis 

with Standard Chartered Bank, where HSBC's share is Tk 430,000,000.

20.1.3 BRAC Bank Limited

The Company is enjoying following facilities from BRAC Bank Limited under the following terms and 

conditions against the facility offer letter dated 6 September 2016:

20.1.3.1 Letters of Credit / Revolving Acceptance/Loan Against Trust Receipt (LATR)

Amount : Tk 500,000,000

Purpose : To retire import documents for raw materials.

Tenure : 120 - 180 days.

Payment : On maturity of such loan.    

20.1.3.2 Revolving loan           

Amount : Tk 250,000,000  

Purpose : For payment of customs duty, VAT through pay order and local procurement of raw materials.

Tenure : 120 days.

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

20.1.3.3 Bank guarantee-one-off  

Amount : Tk 10,529,000

Purpose : To meet various contractual obligations.

Tenure : Open ended.
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20.1.3.4 Securities against the facilities  

Securities against the facilities mentioned under notes 19 and 20.1.3 are as follows:

-  First charge pari-passu (with SCB, CBC and HSBC) hypothecation registered with Registrar of 

Joint Stock Companies and Firms  (RJSC) on stock, book debt and receivable of ACI Formulations 

Limited for Tk. 760,000,000.

-  Corporate guarantee from Advanced Chemical Industries Limited supported by board resolution.

20.1.4 The City Bank Limited 

The Company is enjoying following facilities from The City Bank Limited under the following terms and 

conditions against the facility offer letter dated 27 October 2016.

20.1.4.1 Manarah Murabaha local purchase facility   

Amount : Tk 500,000,000

Purpose : To procure raw materials and finished goods from local source.

Tenure : 360 days from date of each disbursement.

20.1.5 Prime Bank Limited 

The Company is enjoying following facilities from Prime Bank Limited under the following terms and 

conditions against the facility offer letter dated 6 December 2016.            

20.1.5.1 Letters of credit (LC) / Loan against trust receipt (LATR):     

Amount : Tk 1,000,000,000  

Purpose : For payment of imported raw materials / chemicals / accessories / capital machinery / 

spare parts and others (import of capital machinery shall not exceed Tk 100,000,000). 

Also for retirement of L/C documents or payment of accepted bills.

Tenure : 180 - 365 days.

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

20.1.5.2 Time loan / Short term loan  

Amount : Tk 500,000,000 (Inner limit of limit 20.1.5.1 above).

Purpose : To procure raw materials / chemicals / accessories and others from local sources.

Tenure : 365 days.

Payment : On maturity of such loan.

20.1.5.3 Bank guarantee 

Amount : Tk 40,000,000

Purpose : To provide guarantee in favor of different authority as required by the Company.

Tenure : 365 days.

20.1.5.4 Securities against the facilities 

Securities against the facilities mentioned under notes 19 and 20.1.5 are as follows:

- Available charge on floating assets with Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC).

- NIGPA to sell hypothecated assets without reference to the Court in case of default.

- Corporate guarantee of Advance Chemicals Industries Limited to ACI Formulations Limited.

20.1.6 Commercial Bank of Ceylon Plc           

The Company is enjoying following facilities from Commercial Bank of Ceylon Plc under the following 

terms and conditions against the facility offer letter dated 6 October 2015 and subsequent updates:
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20.1.6.1 Letters of Credit / Loan Against Trust Receipt (LATR)

Amount : Tk 400,000,000    

Purpose : To retire import documents for raw materials, packing materials, finished goods and spare parts.

Tenure : 180 days.    

Payment : On maturity of such loan.    

20.1.6.2 Short term loan           

Amount : Tk 100,000,000         

Purpose : For granting payment of procurement of local raw materials and payment for duty and tax 

of imported raw materials.

Tenure : 180 days.         

Payment : On maturity of such loan.         

20.1.6.3 Securities against the facilities           

Securities for the facilities mentioned under notes 19 and 20.1.6 are as follows:

-  Registered first hypothecation charge over stocks and book debts on pari-pasu basis with other 

lenders, where CBC's share is  Tk 420,000,000.

21 Trade payables

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Related party- Premiaflex Plastics Limited  7,604,717  3,706,335  4,288,379 

 Other than related parties  48,490,711  24,599,511  60,605,261 

   56,095,428  28,305,846  64,893,640 

21(a) Consolidated trade payables

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Related party- Premiaflex Plastics Limited  7,604,717  3,706,335  4,288,379 

 Other than related parties  58,420,434  30,774,466  60,616,643 

   66,025,151  34,480,801  64,905,022 

22 Other payables

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Creditors for expenses 22.1 178,575,406  267,495,682  265,165,504 

 Interest payable  34,728,738  9,196,761  6,064,400 

 Security money payable  11,299,410  10,957,274  8,118,674 

 Unpaid dividend  10,658,806  75,781,285  8,866,821 

 Withholding tax and VAT  2,235,641  28,677,377  4,645,688 

 Provision for workers' profit participation fund  18,775,022  6,665,352  16,860,945 

   256,273,023  398,773,731  309,722,032 

22.1 This includes accrued selling, manufacturing and other accrued expenses.            

22(a) Consolidated other payables

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Creditors for expenses  179,402,321  268,037,651  265,616,546 

 Interest payable  34,728,738  9,196,761  6,064,400 

 Security money payable  11,299,410  10,957,274  8,118,674 

 Unpaid dividend  10,658,806  75,781,285  8,866,821 

 Withholding tax and VAT  2,323,630  28,704,319  4,775,293 

 Provision for workers' profit participation fund  18,775,022  6,665,352  16,860,945 

   257,187,927  399,342,642  310,302,679 
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23 Inter-company payable

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 ACI Limited  56,695,146  403,437,863  491,138,072 

   56,695,146  403,437,863  491,138,072 

 This arises due to common cost sharing and working capital financing with ACI Limited.

24 Provision for tax 

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Opening balance  270,211,614  220,348,296  141,221,360 

 Provision made during the year/ period  91,149,008  49,863,318  79,126,936 

 Adjustment on completion of assessment for prior years (132,961,962) -  - 

 Balance at reportng date  228,398,660  270,211,614  220,348,296 

24(a) Consolidated provision for tax  

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Opening balance  270,288,907  220,406,228  141,253,848 

 Provision made during the year/ period  91,350,505  49,882,679  79,152,380 

 Adjustment on completion of assessment for prior years (132,961,962) -  - 

 Balance at reportng date  228,677,450  270,288,907  220,406,228 

25 Revenue

    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Agrochemical products 25.1 2,246,950,903  2,960,988,365  1,027,959,599  1,933,028,766 

 Consumer products 25.2 1,382,479,976  1,670,981,663  597,525,299  1,073,456,364 

   3,629,430,879  4,631,970,028  1,625,484,898  3,006,485,130 

In view of innumerable items of sales and diversified quantities, it is not practicable to disclose the 

quantities against each items of sale.

25.1 Agrochemical products 

    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Local  2,219,373,126  2,942,688,856  1,023,535,529  1,919,153,327 

 Export  27,577,777  18,299,509  4,424,070  13,875,439 

   2,246,950,903  2,960,988,365  1,027,959,599  1,933,028,766 

25.2 Consumer products 

    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Coil 25.2.1 524,068,918  773,936,547  239,944,548  533,991,999 

 Aerosol 25.2.1 609,912,662  789,599,395  309,419,470  480,179,925 

 Vanish 25.2.1 52,213,471  50,310,312  25,693,517  24,616,795 

 Paint  196,284,925  57,135,409  22,467,764  34,667,645 

   1,382,479,976  1,670,981,663  597,525,299  1,073,456,364 



25.2.1 On 24 April 2015, ACI Limited entered into an agreements with S. C. Johnson & Son, Inc. (a corporation 

incorporated under the laws of the state of Wisconsin, USA) whereby S. C. Johnson & Son, Inc. has 

purchased the brands of these products on mutually beneficial terms. As per contract, ACI Formulations 

Limited produces these products for S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc., which are marketed by ACI Limited through 

its own channel. ACI Formulations Limited will continue to be the manufacturer of these products for a 

period of 5 years from 24 April 2015.

25(a) Consolidated revenue 

    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

  In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Agrochemical products 25.1(a) 2,246,950,903  2,960,988,365  1,027,959,599  1,933,028,766 

 Consumer products 25.2(a) 1,416,062,670  1,678,997,197  600,452,059  1,078,545,138 

   3,663,013,573  4,639,985,562  1,628,411,658  3,011,573,904 

25.1(a) Agrochemical products 

    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Local  2,219,373,126  2,942,688,856  1,023,535,529  1,919,153,327 

 Export  27,577,777  18,299,509  4,424,070  13,875,439 

   2,246,950,903  2,960,988,365  1,027,959,599  1,933,028,766 

25.2(a) Consumer products 

    For the For the 

    For the eighteen-month Six-month For the

   year ended period ended period ended year ended

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Coil  524,068,918  773,936,547  239,944,548  533,991,999 

 Aerosol  609,912,662  789,599,395  309,419,470  480,179,925 

 Vanish  52,213,471  50,310,312  25,693,517  24,616,795 

 Paint  196,284,925  57,135,409  22,467,764  34,667,645 

 Herbal cosmetics  33,582,694  8,015,534  2,926,760  5,088,774 

   1,416,062,670  1,678,997,197  600,452,059  1,078,545,138 
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27 Other income

   For the year For the eighteen-month For the six-month For the year

   ended period ended period ended ended

 In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Crop Care & Public Health  3,302,997  8,059,534  2,611,166 5,448,368 

 Mosquito Coil  203,964  5,000  - 5,000 

 Aerosol  180,385  1,704,753  154,660 1,550,093 

 Paint  692,984  -  - - 

 Loss on revaluation  -  (1,450,859) - (1,450,859)

   4,380,330  8,318,428  2,765,826 5,552,602 

28 Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 

   For the year For the eighteen-month For the six-month For the year

   ended period ended period ended ended

 In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Manufacturing expenses 28.1, 28.2 & 28.3 263,965,458  291,456,807  104,842,348 186,614,459 

Administrative, selling & distribution expenses 28.1, 28.2 & 28.3 618,540,895  739,363,582  317,506,138 421,857,444 

   882,506,353  1,030,820,389  422,348,486 608,471,903 

28.1 Administrative, selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 30 June 2017

    30 June 2017

 In Taka Manufacturing Administrative Distribution Selling  Total

  expenses expenses expenses expenses

  Salary and wages 139,451,191  103,400,874 21,137,518 223,269,879  487,259,462 

  Traveling and conveyance 94,878  1,980,365 14,763,486 80,070,411  96,909,140 

  Rent and rates 187,387  `3,236,013 9,861,399 3,110,133  16,394,932 

  Repair and maintenance 22,790,225  5,527,541 1,214,687 1,503,211  31,035,664 

  Fuel and power 54,956,858  2,208,026 1,123,948 22,125  58,310,957 

  Postage, telephone, fax, etc. 710,725  83,377 - 6,124,114  6,918,216 

  Printing and stationery 757,637  636,905 3,570,587 1,159,991  6,125,120 

  Promotional expenses 3,783  50,000 - 54,495,610  54,549,393 

  Entertainment 610,452  1,182,284 903,185 2,462,931  5,158,852 

  Vehicle maintenance 1,809,084  3,239,938 8,393,576 9,021,440  22,464,038 

  Doubtful debts -  - - (14,433,594) (14,433,594)

  Truck and handling 2,531,325  - 15,800,020 -  18,331,345 

 Legal and professional charge -  492,745 - 18,941,059  19,433,804 

  Audit fees -  618,000 - -  618,000 

 Insurance 3,049,745  - - 1,693,261  4,743,006 

 Directors' fees -  9,000 - -  9,000 

 Bank charges -  1,406,909 - 1,120,289  2,527,198 

 Investment write off -  7,896,666 - -  7,896,666 

  Sundry expenses 168,726  - - -  168,726 

  Product development expenses 23,000  - - 1,342,619  1,365,619 

 Training expenses 30,688  - - 2,046,713  2,077,401 

 Depreciation 44,224,949  1,971,881 - 10,925,132  57,121,962 

  Lab chemical and apparatus 258,005  - - -  258,005 

 Meeting expenses -  370,000 - 4,586,641  4,956,641 

  271,658,658  134,310,524 76,768,406 407,461,965  890,199,553 

  Recovery of expenses for toll

  manufacturing service charges (7,693,200) - - - (7,693,200)

  263,965,458  134,310,524 76,768,406 407,461,965 882,506,353 
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28.2 Administrative, selling and distribution expenses for the six month period ended 30 June 2016

    30 June 2016

 In Taka Manufacturing Administrative Distribution Selling  Total
  expenses expenses expenses expenses

 Salary and wages 55,799,858  60,786,559 8,705,889 91,497,158 216,789,464 
 Traveling and conveyance 41,451  1,221,675 6,712,583 34,750,577 42,726,286 
 Rent and rates 195,229  194,806 3,488,044 1,019,660 4,897,739 
 Repair and maintenance 15,423,347  1,699,056 517,068 252,901 17,892,372 
 Fuel and power 12,330,627  579,021 452,746 - 13,362,394 
 Postage, telephone, fax, etc. 259,652  49,014 - 2,519,891 2,828,556 
 Printing and stationery 283,109  1,027,615 1,165,468 165,951 2,642,143 
 Promotional expenses 33,971  - - 46,786,825 46,820,796 
 Entertainment 236,734  717,637 366,745 1,030,515 2,351,631 
 Vehicle maintenance 1,002,209  1,557,689 3,597,003 4,793,805 10,950,706 
 Doubtful debts -  - - 22,577,322 22,577,322 
 Truck and handling 1,179,286  - 5,578,628 - 6,757,914 
 Legal and professional charge -  382,023 - 2,191,093 2,573,116 
 Audit fees -  350,000 - - 350,000 
 Insurance 899,934  - - 237,007 1,136,941 
 Directors' fees -  3,750 - - 3,750 
 Bank charges 855  471,329 - 527,478 999,662 
 Sundry expenses 64,519  - - - 64,519 
 Product development expenses -  -  - 849,353 849,353 
 Training expenses 59,897  - - 1,446,456 1,506,353 
 Depreciation 20,438,787  984,361 - 3,867,542 25,290,690 
 Lab chemical and apparatus 361,161  - - - 361,161 
 Donation and subscription 180,412  - - 10,000 190,412 
 Meeting expenses -  120,001 - 2,253,895 2,373,896 
  108,791,038  70,144,536 30,584,174 216,777,428 426,297,176 

 Recovery of expenses for toll
 manufacturing service charges (3,948,690) - - - (3,948,690)

  104,842,348  70,144,536 30,584,174 216,777,428 422,348,486 

28.3 Administrative, selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015

     31 December 2015

 In Taka Manufacturing Administrative Distribution Selling  Total
  expenses expenses expenses expenses
 Salary and wages 96,897,253  80,815,988 11,258,440 123,068,407 312,040,088 
 Traveling and conveyance 109,399  1,781,240 9,986,438 45,559,544 57,436,621 
 Rent and rates 178,940  1,781,429 6,116,165 2,734,470 10,811,004 
 Repair and maintenance 26,979,367  3,001,328 1,022,281 517,402 31,520,378 
 Fuel and power 17,291,092  1,095,848 755,604 28,596 19,171,140 
 Postage, telephone, fax, etc. 517,100  44,919 - 4,148,689 4,710,708 
 Printing and stationery 747,700  1,071,067 1,592,341 645,140 4,056,248 
 Promotional expenses -  - -  76,489,527 76,489,527 
 Entertainment 326,488  2,150,183 508,563 1,840,011 4,825,245 
 Vehicle maintenance 1,417,904  2,174,404 5,431,347 5,347,335 14,370,990 
 Doubtful debts -  - - 2,002,939 2,002,939 
 Truck and handling 2,349,396  - 5,152,436 - 7,501,832 
 Legal and professional charge -  439,509 - 3,078,539 3,518,048 
 Audit fees -  480,000 - - 480,000 
 Insurance 2,549,569  - - 383,199 2,932,768 
 Directors' fees -  12,750 - - 12,750 
 Bank charges -  1,496,870 - 809,801 2,306,671 
 Sundry expenses 139,746  - - - 139,746 
 Product development expenses -  - - 3,112,356 3,112,356 
 Training expenses 69,452  - - 2,258,807 2,328,259 
 Depreciation 43,350,508  1,357,120 - 5,852,850 50,560,478 
 Lab chemical and apparatus 799,497  - - - 799,497 
 Donation and subscription 71,608  73,000 - - 144,608 
 Meeting expenses -  745,001 - 3,635,561 4,380,562 

  193,795,019  98,520,656 41,823,615 281,513,173 615,652,463 

 Recovery of expenses for toll
 manufacturing service charges (7,180,560) - - - (7,180,560)

  186,614,459  98,520,656 41,823,615 281,513,173 608,471,903 
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28(a) Consolidated administrative, selling and distribution expenses

   For the year For the eighteen-month For the six-month For the year

   ended period ended period ended ended

 In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Administrative expenses  134,966,347 174,157,596 70,173,547 103,984,049 

 Distribution expenses  76,768,406 72,805,289 30,839,174 41,966,115 

 Selling expenses  407,461,961 501,725,604 218,058,846 283,666,758 

   619,196,713 748,688,489 319,071,567 429,616,922 

29 Finance costs, net

   For the year For the eighteen-month For the six-month For the year

   ended period ended period ended ended

 In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Interest expenses

 Bank loan  96,105,166 60,177,716 12,920,779 47,256,937 

 Inter-company  22,434,030 30,388,927 16,135,523 14,253,404 

   118,539,196 90,566,643 29,056,302 61,510,341 

 Interest income

 Bank  387,230 820,067 164,771 655,296 

 Inter-company  - 6,604,436 - 6,604,436 

   387,230 7,424,503 164,771 7,259,732 

   118,151,966 83,142,140 28,891,531 54,250,609 

29(a) Consolidated finance costs, net   

   For the year For the eighteen-month For the six-month For the year

   ended period ended period ended ended

 In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Interest expenses

 Bank loan  96,572,910 60,192,216 12,935,279 47,256,937 

 Inter-company  22,434,030 30,460,790 16,135,523 14,325,267 

   119,006,940 90,653,006 29,070,802 61,582,204 

 Interest income

 Bank  387,230 820,067 164,771 655,296 

 Inter-company  - 6,604,436 - 6,604,436 

   387,230 7,424,503 164,771 7,259,732 

   118,619,710 83,228,503 28,906,031 54,322,472 

30 Income tax expense 

   For the year For the eighteen-month For the six-month For the year

   ended period ended period ended ended

 In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Income tax expense 

 Charged during the year/ period 24 91,149,008 128,990,254  49,863,318  79,126,936 

   91,149,008 128,990,254  49,863,318  79,126,936 

 Deferred tax expense/(income)

 Change in deferred tax liabilities 18 4,139,485 (14,779,849) (13,619,687) (1,160,162)

   4,139,485 (14,779,849) (13,619,687) (1,160,162)

 Tax expense/(income)  95,288,493 114,210,405  36,243,631  77,966,774 
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30(a) Consolidated income tax expense

   For the year For the eighteen-month For the six-month For the year

   ended period ended period ended ended

 In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Current tax expense  

 Current year  91,350,505 129,035,059  49,882,679  79,152,380 

   91,350,505 129,035,059  49,882,679  79,152,380 

 Deferred tax expense/(income)

 Change in deferred tax liabilities  4,126,921 (15,148,819) (13,916,883) (1,231,936)

   4,126,921 (15,148,819) (13,916,883) (1,231,936)

 Tax expense/(income)  95,477,426 113,886,240  35,965,796  77,920,444 

31 Earnings per share 

31.1 Basic earnings per share 

The calculation of basic earnings per share based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 

and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding is as follows:

   For the year For the eighteen-month For the six-month For the year

   ended period ended period ended ended

 In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Profit attributable  to the owners of the Company (Taka) 261,436,927 325,540,469  90,398,064  235,142,405 

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number) 45,000,000 45,000,000  45,000,000  45,000,000 

 Earning per share (Taka)  5.81 7.23  2.01  5.23 

31.1(a) Consolidated basic earnings per share 

The calculation of basic earnings per share based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 

and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding is as follows:

   For the year For the eighteen-month For the six-month For the year

   ended period ended period ended ended

 In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Profit/(loss) attributable  to the owners of the Group (Taka) 263,137,439 316,848,272  89,210,706  227,637,566 

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number) 45,000,000 45,000,000  45,000,000  45,000,000 

 Earning per share (Taka)  5.85 7.04  1.98  5.06 

31.2 Diluted earnings per share  

No diluted EPS was required to be calculated for the year ended 30 June 2017 since there was no scope for 

dilution of shares.

32 Financial risk management 

 The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

• Credit risk (see 32 (ii));

• Liquidity risk (see 32(iii)); and

• Market risk (see 32(iv)).

   (i) Risk management framework 

The Company's management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk 

management framework. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks 

faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 

management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s 

activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a 

disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
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   (ii) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 

meet its contractual obligations. Company’s exposure to credit risk primarily relates to trade receivables and 

balances with banks including short and long term deposits. 

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 

However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including 

the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

 The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of financial asset in the statement of 

financial position.

   (a) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 

exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

     Carrying amount

 In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Trade receivables 11(a) 1,476,361,417  1,343,162,169  1,394,417,134 

 Other receivables 12 7,088,014  10,085,589  9,803,584 

 Inter-company receivables 13(a) -  212,659  - 

 Deposits 14(a) 63,185,333  59,920,222  43,148,851 

 Bank balances 15(a) 85,171,963  59,462,960  48,701,233 

    1,631,806,727  1,472,843,599  1,496,070,802 

At reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by geographic 

regions was as follows:

     Carrying amount

 In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Bangladesh  1,478,251,296  1,344,083,383  1,396,107,010 

 India  5,198,135  9,164,375  8,113,708 

    1,483,449,431  1,353,247,758  1,404,220,718 

   (b)Aging of trade receivables 

The aging of trade receivables as at 30 June 2017, 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows:

     Carrying amount

 In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Neither past due nor impaired  835,032,234  853,491,915  1,077,868,407 

 Past due 1 - 90 days  192,148,496  169,668,581  6,031,362 

 Past due 91 - 120 days  185,335,049  92,480,210  24,390,565 

 Past due 121 - 180 days  75,707,737  23,025,319  53,953,712 

 Past due 181 - 365 days  36,319,993  38,592,014  69,750,422 

 Past due 366 - 730 days  38,366,988  67,247,897   66,678,349 

 Past due 731 plus days  113,450,920  98,656,233  95,744,319 

    1,476,361,417  1,343,162,169  1,394,417,134 

Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still 

collectable in full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of the customer 

credit risk, including underlying customers' credit rating if they are applicable.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of receivables during the year was as follows:
 

 In Taka Note 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Opening balance 11(a) 152,357,003  129,790,356  128,270,151 

 Impairment loss recognised  17,510,854  22,590,453  2,002,939 

 Amounts written off/ write in  (32,896,632) (23,806) (482,734)

 Closing balance  136,971,225  152,357,003  129,790,356 
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(iv)  Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest 

rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The 

objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within 

acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

    a) Currency risk 

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the 

currencies in which purchases are denominated and the respective functional currency of the 

Company. The functional currency of the Company is Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT). The foreign 

currency in which these transactions are denominated is US Dollar (USD).

Exposure to currency risk 

The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk as at balance sheet 

date was as follows.

  In USD 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Bank balances 180,712  126,088  108,732 

 Loans and borrowings (6,665,819) (6,506,184) (7,169,667)

   (6,485,108) (6,380,095) (7,060,935)

 The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year:

   30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

   Average Year-end Average Year-end Average Year-end

 In Taka rate spot rate rate spot rate rate spot rate 

 USD 79.95 81.30 78.90  78.60 78.45 78.95 

 Sensitivity analysis  

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of foreign currency against functional currency at 

reporting date would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a 

foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis 

assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignore any impact of 

forecast sales and purchase.

                        Equity, net of tax

                            Profit/(loss)                    increase/(decrease)

 Effect in Taka Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening 

 30 June 2017 

 USD(5% movement) 26,361,962 (26,361,962) 26,361,962 (26,361,962)

 30 June 2016

 USD (5% movement) 25,169,477  (25,169,477) 25,169,477  (25,169,477)

 31 December 2015 

 USD (5% movement) 27,696,518 (27,696,518) 27,696,518 (27,696,518)
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    b) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowings. The Company 

has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest rate risk as at the 

reporting date.

Exposure to interest rate risk  

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as at balance sheet 

date is as follows.

    Nominal Amount

 In Taka Note  30 June 2017  30 June 2016   31 December 2015 

 Fixed rate instruments

 Financial assets

 Investment in FDR 9(a) 3,043,953  3,014,040  2,971,144  

 Financial liabilities 

 Bank overdrafts 19 (85,843,847) (68,781,653) (51,877,357)

 Loans and borrowings 20(a) (1,881,364,554) (948,550,813) (787,827,659)

    (1,964,164,448) (1,014,318,426) (836,733,872)

 Variable rate instruments

 Financial assets

 Loans to Advance Chemical Industries Limited  - -  - 

 Financial liabilities

 Offshore loan  (541,931,120) (511,386,036) (566,045,210)

 Loans from Advance Chemical Industries Limited (56,161,769) (400,011,986) (487,605,704)

    (598,092,889) (911,398,022) (1,053,650,914)
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Consideration transferred 

 In Taka Note  2015 

 Cash payment 9.1 

  Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd    115,000 

  Aloe Organics (Pvt.) Limited   115,000 

  Green Business & Marketing Company (BD) Limited   115,000 

 Total consideration transferred   345,000 

34 Commitments and contingencies   

34.1 Commitments 

On the statement of financial position date, the Company is enjoying unfunded credit facilities from the 

following banks:

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 a) Revenue expenditure (Letters of credit)

 Standard Chartered Bank 423,610 4,618,083 - 

 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 104,133,024 3,878,989 53,161,211 

 The City Bank Limited 50,398,683 - - 

 BRAC Bank Limited 27,340,387 74,033,624 96,634,920 

 Prime Bank Limited 31,745,576 - - 

 HSBC 36,621,902 60,562,991 - 

   250,663,181 143,093,687 149,796,131 

 b) Capital expenditure

 Approved and contracted for 51,467,395 22,102,728 2,311,972 

   51,467,395 22,102,728 2,311,972 

34.2 Contingent liabilities 

  In Taka  30 June 2017 30 June 2016 31 December 2015

 Bank guarantee       

 HSBC 1,581,679 6,605,679 6,605,679 

 Standard Chartered Bank 15,437,798 43,944 43,944 

   17,019,477 6,649,623 6,649,623 

 Performance guarantee

 Standard Chartered Bank 147,600 147,600 147,600 

   147,600 147,600 147,600 

   17,167,077 6,797,223 6,797,223 

35 Production capacity 

 The production status (business wise) for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 are as follows:

 Business Segment Capacity Unit Actual % of utilisation

 Crop Care and Public Health 21,570 M Ton 10,138 47.00 

 Mosquito Coil 1,098,000 Carton 562,418 51.22 

 Aerosol 7,965,000 Can 6,988,780 87.74 

 The production status (business wise) for the six month period ended 30 June 2016 are as follows:

 Business Segment Capacity Unit Actual % of utilisation

 Crop Care and Public Health 10,785 M Ton 4,756 44.10 

 Mosquito Coil 549,000 Carton 280,130 51.03 

 Aerosol 3,982,500 Can 2,937,175 73.75 

 The production status (business wise) for the year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:

 Business Segment Capacity Unit Actual % of utilisation

 Crop Care and Public Health 21,570 M Ton 8,872 41.13 

 Mosquito Coil 1,098,000 Carton 619,160 56.39 

 Aerosol 7,965,000 Can 4,940,424 62.03 
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37 Other disclosures     

37.1 Number of employees        

At 30 June 2017, number of regular employees receiving remuneration of Tk. 36,000 or above per 

annum was 1,679 (30 June 2016: 1,489, 31 December 2015: 1,459).       

37.2 Subsequent events

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 23 October 2017 have recommended final cash 

dividend @ 15% per share of Taka 10 each aggregating to Taka 67,500,000 for the year ended 30 

June 2017 in addition to interim cash dividend @ 20% per share of Taka 10 each aggregating to Taka 

90,000,000 subject to approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting was scheduled to 

be held on 18 December 2017.

       

38 Name of auditors of the group companies   

Name of the company Status of the company Name of auditors 

Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd Subsidiary Shiraz Khan Basak & Co. 

Aloe Organics (Pvt.) Limited Subsidiary Shiraz Khan Basak & Co. 

Green Business & Marketing Company (BD) Limited Subsidiary Shiraz Khan Basak & Co. 



ACI Formulations Limited

Report of the Directors and Audited
Financial Statements of the Subsidiary Company

as at & for the year ended
30 June 2017
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Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Limited is a private Company limited by shares, incorporated in 2003 with the 

Registrar of Joint Stock Companies, Dhaka, Bangladesh and governed by the Companies Act 1994. ACI 

Formulations Limited is the major shareholder of the Company having 98% shares.

Currently, the Company is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of herbal products in small scale. ACI 

Formulations Limited, however, acquired the Company in 2013 having a plan of large scale operation to 

capture the potential market of the Neem based products and to make available the benefits of Neem & 

other herbs to the consumers. The personal care portfolio has been re-launched under the brand name 

"Neem Original". The portfolio consists soap, face wash, hand wash and face pack. The soap category is the 

flagship product of the portfolio. We are looking to introduce more products in the portfolio in coming years 

to strengthen the brand as a whole.

The Company follows fiscal year (July-June) as its financial year. The operating results as per audited 

accounts of the Company for the year ended on 30 June 2017 are as follows:

Key Financial Results Value (BDT)

Revenue 33,582,694 

Gross profit 3,043,322 

Operating profit/ (loss) 2,185,420

Profit /(loss) before tax 1,717,677 

Profit /(loss) after tax 1,528,745

Neem Laboratories (PVT.) Limited

Directors' Report

Syed Alamgir
Director

On behalf of the Board

Shusmita Anis
Director

Dhaka: 07 September, 2017
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C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

SHIRAZ KHAN BASAK & CO.

(An associate firm of D. N. Gupta & Associates)

Dhaka: 7 September, 2017 Shiraz khan Basak & Co.

  Chartered Accountants.

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of NEEM LABORATORIES (Pvt.) Limited ("the 

company") which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at June 30, 2017 and the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, 

and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information disclosed in note. 

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management of the company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial 

Statements in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act, 1994 

and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted 

our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud and error. In making 

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company's preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's 

internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the management of the company, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation of the Financial Statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of NEEM 

LABORATORIES (Pvt.) Limited as at June 30, 2017 and its financial performance for the year then ended in 

accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS) and comply with the applicable section of 

the Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations. 

We also report that:

a)  we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b)  in our opinion, proper books of account as required by the law have been kept by the company so far as 

it appeared from our examination of those books; and

c)  the Company's Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income dealt with by 

the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns.

Independent Auditor's Report
to the Shareholders of NEEM LABORATORIES (Pvt) Limited
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Date: 7 September 2017

Place: Dhaka  

As per our separate report of even

date annexed.

Chartered Accountant

Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.

NEEM LABORATORIES (Pvt.) Limited

Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June, 2017

 Director         Director        Company Secretary

  Particulars  30 June-2017 30 June-2016

    Taka Taka

Assets

 Property, plant and equipment:         
 At cost  4,960,191  4,731,368 
 Accumulated depreciation  (2,094,550) (1,483,972)

Total non-current assets  2,865,641  3,247,396 
        
        
Deferred tax asset  587,562  574,998 
        
 Inventories  12,774,230  9,623,211 
 Trade receivables  12,669,842  2,815,131 
 Advances, deposits and prepayments  4,746,616  3,695,986 
 Cash and cash equivalents  12,388,590  2,371,173 
Total current assets  42,579,278  18,505,500 
Total assets  46,032,482  22,327,894 
        
Equity and liabilities        
        
Equity        
        
 Share capital  500,000  500,000 
 Retained earnings  (11,022,207) (12,550,952)
Total equity  (10,522,207) (12,050,952)
Liability        
        
 Loans and borrwoings  5,489,148  4,313,623 
 Trade payables  9,929,724  6,174,955 
 Other payables  914,905  468,818 
 Inter-company liabilities  39,942,124  23,344,158 
 Current tax liability  278,788  77,292 
        
Total current liabilities  56,554,689  34,378,846 
Total liabilities  56,554,689  34,378,846 
Total equity and liabilities  46,032,482  22,327,894 

An associate firm of D.N. Gupta Associates
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NEEM LABORATORIES (PVT.) LIMITED

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the  year ended 30 June, 2017

As per our separate report of even

date annexed.

Chartered Accountant

Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.

Date: 7 September 2017

Place: Dhaka  

 Director         Director        Company Secretary

  Particulars  30 June-2017 30 June-2016

    Taka Taka

Revenue  33,582,694  5,777,379 

Cost of sales  (30,539,372) (4,934,174)

Gross profit  3,043,322  843,205 

Administration, selling and distribution expenses  (857,902) (8,327,624)

   2,185,420  (7,484,419)

Other income  -  - 

Result from operating activities  2,185,420  (7,484,419)

Finance cost  (467,744) (47,165)

Profit / (loss) before income tax  1,717,677  (7,531,584)

     

Income tax expenses :

 Current tax expenses  (201,496) (34,664)

 Deferred tax income  12,564  236,038 

   (188,932) 201,374 

Net profit / (loss) after tax  1,528,745  (7,330,210)

An associate firm of D.N. Gupta Associates
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NEEM LABORATORIES (PVT.) LIMITED

Statement of Changes In Equity
For the  year ended 30 June, 2017

  Share Retained  

  capital earnings Total

                       Particulars  Taka Taka Taka

     

Balance on 30 June  2015  500,000  (5,220,742) (4,720,742)
        

Net loss for the year  -  (7,330,210) (7,330,210)

Other comprehensive income/(Loss)  for the year -  -  - 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -  (7,330,210) (7,330,210)

Balance at 30 June 2016  500,000  (12,550,952) (12,050,952)
        

Balance at 1st  July 2016  500,000 (12,550,952) (12,050,952)

Net profit for the year   -  1,528,745  1,528,745 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year -  -  - 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -  1,528,745  1,528,745 

Balance at 30  June 2017  500,000  (11,022,207) (10,522,207)
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NEEM LABORATORIES (PVT.) LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows
For the  year ended 30 June, 2017

  Particulars  30 June-2017  30 June-2016

    Taka Taka

A) Cash flows from operating activities        

         

 Cash receipts/(paid)  from /(to) customers  23,727,983  4,174,243 

 Cash receipts from other income  -  - 

   23,727,983  4,174,243 

 Cash paid for:

 Purchase of inventory  (29,935,624) (6,329,419)

 Operating expenses  198,764  (2,371,357)

 Advances, deposits and prepayments  (530,752) (2,939,232)

   (30,267,612) (11,640,008)

 Cash generated from operations  (6,539,629) (7,465,765)

        

 Financing cost  (467,744) (47,165)

 Income tax  (519,878) (287,486)

   (987,622) (334,651)

 Net cash used in operating activities  (7,527,251) (7,800,416)

        

B) Cash flows from investing activities       

        

 Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (228,823) (90,000)

 Net cash from (used in) investing activities  (228,823) (90,000)

        

C) Cash flows from financing activities       

        

 Inter-company debts  (paid)/received  16,597,966  3,530,232 

 Short term loan received  1,175,525  4,313,623 

 Net cash flows from financing activities  17,773,491  7,843,855 

        

D) Net cash flow from all activities (A+B+C)  10,017,417  (46,561)

        

E) Cash and cash equivalent at 01 July  2,371,173  2,417,733 

        

F) Cash and cash equivalent at 30 June (D+E) 12,388,590  2,371,172 

        

Closing balance represents:        

 Cash in hand and at bank  12,388,590  2,371,173 

   12,388,590  2,371,173 
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Corporate Directory

Registered Office

ACI Centre

245 Tejgaon Industrial Area

Dhaka-1208

Phone # (8802) 8878603

Fax      # (8802) 8878619, 8878626

Email  # info@aci-bd.com

Web  # www.aci-bd.com

Share Office

9 Motijheel C/A

Dhaka-1000

Phone # (8802) 9556254

Manufacturing Facility

ACI Formulations Plant

Rajabari, Sreepur, Gazipur

Phone # (8802) 0682555135
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I/We 

of

being a Member of ACI Formulations Limited, hereby appoint

of

whose signature is appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf 

at the 21st Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 18 December 2017 at 9:00 

am and/or at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hands this ................................ day of ........................... 2017.

P R O X Y    F O R M

(Signature of the Proxy)

Note :   A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to 

attend and vote on his/her behalf. The Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited at the 

Share Office of the Company at 9 Motijheel C/A, Dhaka 1000, not later than 48 hours before 

the time fixed for the meeting.

Signature on

Tk.20

Revenue Stamp

(Signature of the Shareholder)

Registered Folio/ BO ID No.  

No. of Shares held

Date

ACI FORMULATIONS LIMITED

Registered Office

ACI Centre, 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208
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ACI FORMULATIONS LIMITED
Registered Office

ACI Centre, 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208

Signature of Shareholder(s)

Please complete the attendance slip and hand it over at the venue of the Meeting.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I hereby record my Attendance at the 21st Annual General Meeting being held on Monday, 18 December 

2017 at 9:00 am at Officers Club, 26 Baily Road, Dhaka. 

Name of member/proxy 

Registered Folio/ BO ID No

No. of Shares held
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